NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD MEETING
Thursday, May 20, 2004
Zia Room - Library
4:00 p.m.

AGENDA

A. Welcome

B. Adoption of Agenda

C. Approval of Minutes of April 19, 2004
D. Correspondence

E. President’s Report

F. Closure of Open Meeting

G. New Business

Monthly Expenditures Report

Monthly Revenue Report

Oil and Gas Revenue Report

Schedule of Investments

Fiscal Watch Reports

Consideration of Resolution

Consideration of Tuition Waiver for Fire Academy Students
Consideration of Construction Documents

Consideration of Grant Contract

Consideration of RFP #79 — Purchase & Installation of Copiers for NMJC
. Consideration of RFP #84 — Audit Services for NMJC

Consideration of Bid #949RB — Road Grader for Motor Pool

13. Consideration of Bid #950 — Police Pursuit Vehicles for Law Academy
14. Consideration of Bid 951 — Materials to Build Horse Stalls for Rodeo Grounds
15. Consideration of President’s Contract

16. Consideration of Retirement Resolutions

17. Personnel Consideration — Professor of Reading/Writing (Developmental)

SRRSO

b b b
M=o w0

H. Public Comments
I. Announcement of Next Meeting

J.  Adjournment

Larry Hanna
Larry Hanna
Larry Hanna
Pat Chappelle

Dr. McCleery

Larry Hanna

Dan Hardin

Dan Hardin

Dan Hardin

Dan Hardin

Dan Hardin

Dr. McCleery
Rich Fleming
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Frank Collins
Frank Collins
Frank Collins
Frank Collins
Frank Collins
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Rich Fleming

Larry Hanna
Larry Hanna

Larry Hanna



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD MEETING
APRIL 19, 2004

MINUTES

The New Mexico Junior College Board met on Monday, April 19, 2004, beginning at
3:00 p.m. in the Zia Room of Pannell Library. The following members were present:
Mr. Larry Hanna, Chairman; Ms. Patricia Chappelle, Secretary; Mr. Phillip Jones; Mrs.
Yvonne Williams; Mr. Guy Kesner; Mr. Wade Cavitt; and Mr. John Hice, Jr.

Mr. Hanna called the meeting to order and welcomed visitors and guests present: Vange
Perryman, Hobbs News Sun.

Upon a motion by Mr. Hice, seconded by Mr. Kesner, the agenda was unanimously
adopted, as presented.

Upon a motion by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mr. Hice, the board unanimously approved the
minutes of March 18, 2004.

Under President’s Report, Maria Vick reported on the recent cosmetology competition
and Mary Jane Ward reported on the Carl Perkins audit.

Ms. Chappelle moved the board go into closed session for the discussion of limited
personnel matters under the provisions of section 10-15-1-H(2) of the New Mexico
Statutes Annotated 1978. Mr. Jones seconded the motion. The roll call vote was as
follows: Mr. Jones — yes; Ms. Chappelle — yes; Mr. Hice — yes; Mr. Hanna — yes; Mr.
Cavitt — yes; Mrs. Williams - yes; and Mr, Kesner — yes.

Upon re-convening in open meeting, Mr. Hanna stated that the matters discussed in the
closed meeting were limited only to those specified in the motion for closure.

Mr. Cavitt moved that the college accept Patricia Scott’s letter of resignation effective
June 30, 2004. Mrs. Williams seconded the motion which passed unanimously.

Under New Business, Dan Hardin presented the March financial reports and with a
motion by Mr. Jones, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the board unanimously approved the
expenditures for March 2004.

Richard Fleming presented a request for a fee increase for NU 219 and NU 250 in
accordance with the ATI Testing Service increasing the fees for these two courses from
$69 to $94 effective with the Fall 2004 semester. Upon a motion by Mr. Kesner,
seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously approved the request. Dr. Fleming



requested a fee increase for telecollege courses from $22 to $30. A portion of this fee
will be used to pay the license fee for the Introduction to Philosophy course. Upon a
motion by Mr. Chappelle, seconded by Mr. Cavitt, the board unanimously approved the
request. Dr. Fleming recommended a $31 course fee increase (from $215 to $246 per
student) for the Driver Education program effective July 12, 2004. Upon a motion by
Ms. Chappelle, seconded by Mr. Cavitt, the board unanimously accepted the
recommendation. Dr. McCleery recommended a $1.00 per credit hour increase in the
Information Technology fee. Upon a motion by Mr. Kesner, seconded by Mr. Hice, the
board unanimously accepted the recommendation.

Dr. McCleery recommended that the board approve the 2004/2005 budget as presented at
the work session. The contact hour plan will be studied and phased in over a five year
period. $3.6 million will be moved to the capital fund. After some discussion and upon a
motion by Mr. Jones, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the board unanimously approved the
budget. Dr. McCleery recommended a compensation dollar amount of $243,000 or
approximately a 3% compensation increase. There are two new positions — Recruiter and
Director of the Western Heritage Center. Mr. Hice made a motion to approve the
recommendation and Ms. Chappelle seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Mr.
Jones — yes; Ms. Chappelle — yes; Mr. Hice - yes; Mr. Hanna — yes; Mr. Cavitt — yes;
Mrs. Williams — yes; and Mr. Kesner — No,

Lisa Brown presented the recommended changes for the 2004-2005 employee handbook.
After some discussion and upon a motion by Mr. Hice, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the
board unanimously approved the handbook with changes.

Frank Collins presented Request for Proposals #81 — Career Mobility Nursing Program.
The administration recommended acceptance of the services of Davis Nursing Education
Services for $38,000. Mr. Hice made a motion to approve the recommendation and Ms.
Chappelle seconded the motion. The roll call vote was as follows: Mr. Jones — yes; Ms.
Chappelle — yes; Mr. Hice — yes; Mr. Hanna — yes; Mr. Cavitt — yes; Mrs. Williams - yes;
and Mr. Kesner — No.

Mr. Collins presented Request for Proposals #82 — New Mexico Junior College
Community Survey. The administration recommended acceptance of the services of
Robinson & Muenster Associates, Inc. for $13,956. Upon a motion by Mr. Kesner,
seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously accepted the recommendation.

Dr. McCleery presented a retirement resolution for Sam Oswald. Mr. Oswald has served
the college for 14 years and has elected to retire effective April 16, 2004. Upon a motion
by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mr. Cavitt, the board unanimously adopted the resolution with
regrets.

Mr. Hanna called for comments from the community. There being none, the next regular
board meeting was scheduled for May 20, 2004, beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Zia Room
of Pannell Library.



Upon a motion by Mr. Cavitt, seconded by Mr. Kesner, the board meeting adjourned at
4:40 p.m.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

SECRETARY



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Finance

a

To: New Mexico Junior College Board Members
From: Dan Hardin

Date: May 13, 2004

RE: Expenditure and Revenue Reports for April 2004

April is month ten or 84% of the budget for the 2003/2004 fiscal year. The expenditure
report represents funds expended and encumbered. The total year-to-date funds
expended and/or encumbered through the month of April is $23,874,148.00 of which
$1,550,028.00 are encumbered funds.

The total current unrestricted fund expenditures for Current Unrestricted Funds through
April are $14,156,788.00, which is 86% of the projected budget. Instruction
expenditures normally run $460,000.00 to 470,000.00 per month. In April we began
paying the summer payrolls for the faculty, increasing the expenditures to
$1,053,156.00. As has been previously indicated Internal Service Departments will
have a budget transfer in June to cover maintenance costs on the Docutech. Student
Aid is over budget due to Tuition Waivers.

In the Restricted Funds Grants continue to expend funds, most grants do not end their
year until September or October.

In the Plant Funds expenditures are for the completion of the Infrastructure project, the
JASI Software, and the construction drawings for Western Heritage and Ben Alexander
capital projects.

Total expenditures for the month were $2,151,463.00.

Revenue generated in April was $1,479,586.00. This mostly consists of the monthly
allocation from the state, the oil and gas and oil and gas equipment tax income, grant
and direct loan drawdowns.

The actual oil and gas tax revenue for March was $408,619.00, the accrual for April
was the same $239,507.00. Total oil & gas and oil & gas equipment tax revenue year-
to-date is $4,011,380.00, which is $1,169,897.00 over the projected budget through ten
months of the budget.



Restricted Funds had $144,327.00 in revenue for April, the result of drawdowns from
grants and direct loans for students.

Total revenue for April 2004 is $1,479,586.00, with year-to-date revenue of
$23,512,589.00 or 77% of projected budget.

The investment report shows an ending balance in the Local Governmental Investment
Pool of $10,125,000.00. Of the $10,125,000.00 in LGIP, $5,472,592.19 or 54% is
designated as capital projects. The balances for capital projects include what has been
expended, but does not include what has been encumbered. In May the business
office will make the transfers from reserves for capital projects that were approved in
the last board meeting

The CHE (Commission on Higher Education) budget was delivered on time to the
commission staff. | would like to thank the Board for your diligent work on the budget
and for allowing the time to complete the CHE budget.

This concludes the Financial Report for April 2004.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Expenditure Report
April 2004

84% of Year Completed
2002-03 2003-04
Year-to-Date Percentage Current Year-to-date Percentage
Final Expended or of Budget Original Expended or Expended or of Budget
Fund Budget Encumbered Expended Budget Encumbered  Encumbered Expended
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Instruction 4,812,332 4,921,418 102% 6,469,404 1,053,156 4,946,626 76%
Academic Support 911,970 1,091,144 120% 1,308,171 82,187 1,062,111 81%
Student Services 1,069,344 1,262,697 118% 1,480,107 127,366 1,263,126 85%
Institutional Support 3,726,901 2,100,807 56% 2,169,551 176,152 1,961,435 90%
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 1,748,024 1,572,334 90% 1,932,913 175,267 1,822,345 94%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 12,268,571 10,948,400 89% 13,360,146 1,614,128 11,055,643 83%
Student Activities 290,976 284,795 98% 315,714 64,431 303,891 96%
Research 0 0 0% 0 ] [+ 0%
Public Service 0 0 0% 0 [+] 0 0%
Internal Service Departments 683,216 199,365 29% 420,854 4,674 578,206 137%
Student Ald 281,479 214,784 76% 179,889 2,611 253,094 141%
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,197,047 1,490,355 1259, 1,457,789 78,427 1,427,643 98%
Athletics 568,428 590,687 104% 698,906 52,510 538,311 77%
Total Current Unrestricted Fund 15,289,717 13,728,386 90% 16,433,298 1,816,781 14,155,788 86%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 2,783,775 1,861,043 67% 2,013,499 214,813 1,458,855 72%
Student Ald 3,964,907 4,554,971 115% 4,180,325 12,}‘57 4,595,502 110%
Total Current Restricted Fund 6,748,682 6,416,014 95% 6,193,824 236,570 6,054,357 98%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outfay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl,
Projects from Institutional Funds 5,944,312 1,720,601 29% 6,363,403 65,083 799,974 13%
Projects from State GOB Funds 1,212,900 1,168,366 96% 5,226,697 27,108 2,535,899 49%
Projects from State STB Funds 0 0 0% 1,980,000 0 103,481 0%
Projects from State ER & R 0 0 0% 270,971 o 0 0%
Projects from State BR& R 327,399 327,133  100% 390,082 5,921 219,810 56%
Projects from Auxillary BR&R 39,009 32,756 84% 19,539 0 3,839 20%
Subtotal - Capital and BR&R 7,523,620 3,248,856 43% 14,250,692 98,112 3,663,003 26%
Debt Service
Revenue Bonds 0 0 0% 0 0 [+] 0%
Total Plant Funds 7,523,620 3,248,856 43% 14,250,692 98,112 3,663,003 26%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 29,562,019 23,393,256 79% 36,877,814 2,151,463 23,874,148 65%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Revenue Report

April 2004

84% of Year Completed
2002-03 2003-04
Percentage Percentage
Final Year-to-date  of Budget Original Current Month  Year-to-date of Budget
Fund Budget Revenue Received Budget Revenue Revenue Recelved
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Tuition and Fees 1,356,355 1,257,417 93% 1,653,150 17,467 1,545,795 94%
State Appropriations 7,376,100 6,146,830 83% 7,684,800 619,358 6,558,871 B85%
Advalorem Taxes - Oil and Gas 2,949,084 3,845,270 130% 3,409,779 409,036 4,011,380 118%
Advalorem Taxes - Property 1,800,000 1,650,137 92% 2,000,000 81,851 1,694,103 85%
Interest Income 50,000 50,553 101% 50,000 5,399 29,555 59%
Other Revenues 307,700 380,246 124% 316,500 38,793 264,572 84%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 13,839,239 13,330,453 96% 15,114,229 1,171,904 14,104,276 93%
Student Activities 43,400 47,292 109% 47,500 44 47,206 99%
Public Service 0 0 0% 0 ] 0 0%
Internal Service Departments 10,000 11,059 111% 13,000 1,419 9,995 77%
Auxlliary Enterprises 1,663,000 1,688,523 102% 1,728,300 24,392 1,690,854 98%
Athletics 35,400 29,069 82% 35,400 2,875 29,171 B82%
Total Current Unrestricted 15,591,039 15,106,396 97% 16,938,429 1,200,634 15,881,502 94%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 2,347,254 1,332,409 57% 2,013,499 109,057 1,108,931 55%
Student Ald 3,716,407 4,150,821 112% 4,180,325 35,270 4,578,241 110%
Total Current Restricted 6,063,661 5,483,230 20% 6,193,824 144,327 5,687,172 92%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Projects from State GOB Funds 1,212,900 791,136 65% 4,593,986 43,746 1,676,681 36%
Projects from State STB Funds o 0 0% 2,000,000 79,943 165,653 8%
Projects from Other State Funds ] 0 0% 680,399 0 0 0%
Interest Income 105,700 84,551 80% 100,000 10,936 101,581 102%
Total Plant Funds 1,318,600 875,687 66% 7,374,385 134,625 1,943,915 26%
GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 22,973,300 21,465,313 93% 30,506,638 1,479,586 23,512,589 7%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Oil and Gas Revenue Report
April 2004

84% of Year Completed
OIL GAS COMBINED
2002-03 Variance
Month of ol Price Lea County Price Lea County Monthly Original Over (Under)
Sales Distribution per BBL BBLs sold | per MCF MCF sold Revenue Budget Budget
| Actual July $26.85 2,991,006 $4.48 16,317,305 343,217 239,507 103,710
Actual August £25.32 3,451,574 $5.26 15,862,113 | 337,799 239,507 98,292
Actual September $25.39 3,597,704 | %4.80 17,349,678 | 321,605 239,507 82,098
Actual October  $30.08 3,068,996 | $4.56 17,740,094 427,926 239,507 188,419
Actual November $26.37 2,877,972 44.52 16,425,079 297,713 239,507 58,206
Actual December $28.16 3,127,825 %£4.39 17,293,973 341,121 239,507 101,614 1
Actual January £29.63 2,987,545 $4.25 16,321,118 309,412 239,507 69,905
Actual February £30.37 3,173,669 $4.74 17,433,910 356,805 239,507 117,298
Actual March $32.33 3,170,048 $5.64 17,607,065 408,619 239,507 169,112
Accrual April 239,507 239,507 0
May 239,507 (239,507)
June 239,507 {239,507}
Y.T.D. Production Tax Revenue 3,383,724 2,874,084 509,640
Y.T.D. Equipment Tax Revenue 627,656 535,695 91,961
Total Year-to-Date Oil & Gas and Equipment Tax Revenue _ 4,011,380 _-,_3L4091'Z79 601,601

Source: New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department

Per Johnson, Miller & Co., C.P.A.'s, an accrual is made for oil and gas revenue for the reporting
month. April is the monthly budget amount.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Schedule of Investments

April 2004

B4% of Year Completed
Period of
Amount Maturity Investment Account Interest Interest
Financial Institution Invested Date {Days) Number Rate Earned
State of New Mexico
Local Government Investment Pool 10,125,000 N/A N/A 7102-1348 1.87% 16,341
Total investments 10,125,000 16,341
Summary of Current Month's Activity Capital Projects 4/30/2004
Technology Upgrade 115,725.20
Beginning amount 10,125,000 Workforce Training Center 1,191,750.14
High Tech Start Up 201,296.00
Plus: deposits 0 Docutech 175,000.00
Vehicles 35,655.62
Less: withdrawals [+] CISCO Networking Equipment 4,188.53
Westermn Heritage Center 500,000.00
Capital Projects 5,472,5%3 Drawings and Master Plan 44,963.70
Baseball Field 95,949.68
Reserves Invested 4,652,407 Rodeo Arena 11,533.96
Dormitory Landscape 45,900.93
Total LGIP Investment 10,125,000 Lea County Beautification 0.00
Circle Drive 93,632.64
Dorm Construction 0.00
Roadway Parking Lot Seal Coat 50,000.00
Dorm Recreation Area 117,238.491
BRE&R Carryover 19,539.49
Water Rights 9,465.59
Firing Range Upgrade 6,564.13
Millen Fence/Landscape 100,000.00
Ben Alexander Student Center 2,365,438.94
JASI 288,750.23
Total 5,472,593.19

NOTE: Capital projects lotal does not include encumbared funds




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Finance
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240
Phone: (505)392-5210
Fax: (505)392-2526

A

To: NMJC Board members
From: Dan Hardin

RE: Fiscal Watch Reports
Date: May 20, 2004

Board members, the Commission on Higher Education changed the requirement for the fiscal watch
reports from semi annual to quarterly reports. The college is required to provide a Balance Sheet, a
comparison of Operating and Plant Funds, a summary of Operating and Plant Funds, and a cash flow

statement. These statements are as of March 2004 and follow the Board reports from March.

Lkt

Dan Hardin



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Balance Sheet
(Unaudited and Unadjusted)

As of 3/31/04
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 893,510
Investments 10,125,000
Accounts Receivable, net 431,787
Inventories 303,780
Prepaid Expenses 196,395
Total Current Assets 11,950,472
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 10,942,783
Contruction in Progress 1,452,190
Total Non-Current Assets 12,394,973
Total Assets 24,345,445
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 13,849
Accrued Wages Payable 130,682
Deferred Revenue 23,848
Accrued Liabilities 381,840
Scholarships payable 31,194
Other Payables
Total Current Liabilities 581,413
Total Liabilities 581,413
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 9,719,374
Unrestricted 14,044,658
Total Net Assets 23,764,032




3-31-04 Fiscal Watch YTD Comparison

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Comparison of Operating and Plant Funds
(Unadjusted and Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2002-2003 and 2003-2004

Percentage
Acutals as of Actuals as of Increase
3/31/2003 3/31/2004 (Decrease)
Operating Funds
REVENUES
Tuition & Fees 1,235,158 1,528,328 23.7%
State Appropriations 5,532,147 5,939,513 7.4%
Local Appropriations 5,014,541 5,214,596 4.0%
Sales & Service 1,716,943 1,722,200 0.3%
Other 446,798 276,231 -38.2%
Total Revenues 13,945,587 14,680,868 5.3%
EXPENDITURES
Instruction & General 9,548,738 9,441,515 -1.1%
Student Social & Cultural 226,235 239,460 5.8%
Internal Services 252,660 573,532 127.0%
Student Aid 208,058 250,483 20.4%
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,382,747 1,349,216 -2.4%
Intercollegiate Athletics 533,464 485,801 -8.9%
Total Expenditures 12,151,902 12,340,007 1.5%
Increase (decrease) in Fund Balances 1,793,685 2,340,861
Plant Funds
REVENUES
Interest Income 76,141 90,645 19.0%
State Funds 774,170 1,718,645
QOther
Total Revenue 850,311 1,809,290 112.8%
EXPENDITURES
Capital Projects 2,917,632 3,347,163 14.7%
Building R&R 259,446 213,889 -17.6%
Equipment R&R
Auxiliary R&R 34,556 3,839 -88.9%
Total Expenditures 3,211,634 3,564,891 11.0%
Increase {Decrease) in Fund Balances -2,361,323 -1,755,601



3-31-04 Fiscal Watch Income Expense

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Summary of Operating and Plant Funds
(Unadjusted and Unaudited)

March 31 2004

Fiscal Year 2003 - 2004

FY 2003-2004 Percentage of
FY 2003-2004 Actual as of Budget Earned or
Criginal Budget 3-31-04 Expended
Operating Funds
REVENUES
Tuition & Fees 1,653,150 1,528,328 92.45%
State Appropriations 7,684,800 5,939,513 77.29%
Local Appropriations 5,408,779 5,214,596 96.39%
Sales & Service 1,788,800 1,722,200 96.28%
Other 401,900 276,231 68.73%
Total Revenues 16,938,429 14,680,868 86.67%
EXPENDITURES
Instruction & General 13,359,795 9,441,515 70.67%
Student Social & Cultural 315,714 239,460 75.85%
Internal Services 420,854 573,532 136.28%
Student Aid 179,889 250,483 139.24%
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,457,789 1,349,216 92.55%
Intercollegiate Athletics 698,906 485,801 69.51%
Total Expenditures 16,432,947 12,340,007 75.09%
Increase (decrease) in Fund Balances 505,482 2,340,861
Plant Funds
REVENUES
Interest Income 100,000 90,645 90.65%
State Funds 7,274,385 1,718,645 23.63%
Other
Total Revenue 7,374,385 1,809,290 24.53%
EXPENDITURES
Capital Projects 13,568,202 3,347,163 24.67%
Building R&R 390,082 213,889 54.83%
Equipment R&R 273,220 - 0.00%
Auxiliary R&R 19,539 3,839 19.65%
Total Expenditures 14,251,043 3,564,891 25.01%
Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balances -6,876,658 1,755,601




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS March 31, 2004

Cash flow from operating activities:
Tuition and fees 1,528,328.00
Federal and state grants and contracts 5,542,845.00
Auxiliary enterprise charges 1,666,462.00
Other operating revenue 180,783.75
Payments to employees, benefits, and suppliers -13,201,260.92
Disbursement of net aid to students -4,573,745.00
Net cash used by operating activities -§,856,587.17

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State appropriations 5,939,513.00
Local appropriations 5,214,596.00
Other nonoperating receipts 82,034.00
Gifts 0.00

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities

11,236,143.00

Interest from capital asset related debt 114,801.00
Capital appropriations 1,718,645.00
Purchases of capital assets -2,337,323.27
Sale of capital assets 44,995.25
Net cash used for capital financing activities -458,882.02
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (LGIP) -1,900,000.00
Net cash used for investing activities -1,900,000.00
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 20,673.81
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 183,983.00
Cash and cash equivalents - March 31, 2004 204,656.81



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Instruction

MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 28, 2004

TO: New Mexico Junior College Board Members

FROM: Richard Fleming, Vice President for Instruction [T £ [~
SUBJECT: Tuition Waiver for Fire Academy Students

In 1998, the New Mexico Junior College Board authorized tuition waivers for Hobbs Police
Department officers attending the law enforcement academy. This was done primarily because
the police department was providing academy instructors, equipment, and training facilities
(indoor shooting range, fire arms training equipments, etc. ).

The College has worked with the Hobbs Fire Department in the past to conduct two other
academies. We believe our cooperation with them benefits the community and the college. One
of the academies was 20 weeks and another was 13 weeks. They are proposing another 13 week
academy totaling 32 credit hours in 11 courses. However, even though the HFD encourages
students to enroll for credit, students are not required to do so even though they can still attend
the academy.

I am proposing that tuition waivers be extended to the Hobbs Fire Department for academy
courses when we co-sponsor the academy. The HFD provides all of the required equipment
(bunker gear, vehicles, breathing apparatus, and miscellaneous equipment/tools) necessary for
conducting the fire academy. NMJC provides the facilities for the class and reimburses the HFD
$1,000 per course so we can collect state funding.

Thank you for you consideration.

5317 Lovington Highway * Hobbs, New Mexico 88240 » (505) 392-5037 » Fax (505) 392-2526



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Offlce of the President

Memo
DATE: May 13, 2004
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board Members
FROM: Steve McCleery &~

SUBJECT: Construction Documents for the Ben Alexander Student Center and the
Western Heritage Center

Attached you will find the construction documents for the Ben Alexander Student Center
and the Western Heritage Museum. Based on the update from the architects, I am
seeking approval of construction and bid documents for the Ben Alexander Student
Center and the Western Heritage Center. The next action for the New Mexico Junior
College Board will be to approve and award the construction contract.

Thank you for your consideration.

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY » HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 « (505) 392-5018 » fax 392-2526



May 10, 2004

Dr. Steve McCleery
President

New Mexico Junior College
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

RE: Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center:
Bidding Method

Dear Dr. McCleery:

We understand that there have been questions raised about the best way to bid this project.
Our documents currently have both projects being constructed under one contract by one
general contractor. The primary reasons for using this method are to attract contractors with
more experience in complex projects for a quality building and for “economy of scale” to get
more building for our construction dollar.

As contractors become more experienced and complete projects successfully they are able to
bond projects with higher construction costs. Therefore the assumption is that if they can
bond at a higher construction cost they have produced good projects. We want a contractor
with experience and the bonding capacity for larger projects. We’ve been told that if these
projects are bid separately then some of the larger contractors will not be interested in
bidding. With more contractors bidding the project we will receive a more competitive bid
(which translates to a lower bid).

The “economy of scale” that we mentioned means that there will be a savings in contractor
overhead and general conditions because there will only be one contractor as opposed to two
contractors each invoicing for this expense. Some of the items that General Conditions
include are job site trailers, trucks, equipment, mobilization and management. If there are
two contractors NMJC will be paying both contractors for these items. Also, there will a
savings with subcontractors who also have to provide these items.

There will also be a savings in purchasing in quantity. We have provided similar building
materials for both buildings to provide the economy of scale that we discussed earlier in this
letter. A single contractor may get a reduction in costs by buying products for two facilities
instead of one and that savings will be realized by NMJC.

Another issue is that we are currently in the process of qualifying contractors for a
$7,000,000 project that includes both buildings. In so doing we have already eliminated
contractors who can only bond a $3,000,000 or $4,000,000 project. It would seem that we
have already committed to combining both buildings into a single contract for a contractor
who submits acceptable qualifications. A change in the award of the contract would require
that we publish a legal advertisement canceling the pre-qualification for a $7,000,000 project
and a new one for a $3,000,000 project. This would postpone bidding the project.



CAD:

Dr. Steve McCleery

New Mexico Junior College
May 10, 2004

Page 2

When bidding a project our documents must be very clear as to how the project is going to
be awarded. We are not permitted to change the method of award after the bids are received.
We therefore cannot tell the contractors that we are receiving a single bid for both projects
and then award separate contracts after that. We are sure to receive protests and that will
delay the start of construction.

The bid documents are 99% complete. If we are directed to change the bidding procedure to
separate bids this will require changes to our documents and will require more time to
prepare the bid documents. This too will delay the bidding and construction activities.

We’ve talked to both of the contractors in Hobbs and they are planning on bidding on this
project. OQur recommendation at this time is that we bid both projects as one contract and
that we select alternates after the bids are submitted.

Please let us know if you have questions regarding these items that have been discussed in
this letter. We will be happy to explain any of our comments in greater detail. We enjoy and
appreciate working with you and your staff, thank you.

Very truly yours,

Dekker/Perich/Sabatini Ltd.

Annelle M. Darby, AIA
Associate

and Sertings\ leery. PRESIDENT \Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK 73\L-McCleery 2004.05-10.doc

EEE

6801 Jefferson NE
Suite 100
Albuquerque NM
87109

505 761.9700
fox 761.4222
dps@dpsabg.com



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00001 - PROJECT DIRECTORY

Owner: New Mexico Junior College
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240

Architectural/Structural: Dekker/Perich/Sabatini, Ltd.
6801 Jefferson NE, Suite 100
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109
Phone: (505) 761-9700
Fax: (505) 761-4222

Mechanical/Electrical: Bridgers and Paxton Consulting Engineers
4600-C Montgomery NE
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109
Phone: (505) 883-4111
Fax: (505) 888-1436

Civil: Pettigrew & Associates
1110 No. Grimes
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240
Phone: (505) 393-9827
Fax: (505)393-1543

Landscape; Dekker/Perich/Sabatini, Ltd.
6801 Jefferson NE, Suite 100
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109
Phone: (505) 761-9700
Fax: (505) 761-4222

END OF SECTION

00001-1



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00100 - ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
FOR
PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS

Sealed bids for the 2004 Building Program - Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning
Center will be received from those contractors who have been pre-qualified to bid on this project at New Mexico
Junior College (as Owner), John Shepherd Administrative Center, Purchasing Office, until June 22, 2004 at 2:00
p.m. (local time). The campus address is 5317 Lovington Highway, Hobbs, NM 88240. Bids received after this
time will not be accepted. Bids will be opened and publicly read aloud at the time the bids are due.

The contractors who are pre-qualified are:

The Bidding and Contract Documents will be available May 25, 2004 and may be examined at:

F.W. Dodge Co. Construction Reporter Builder’s News

1615 University Blvd., NE 1607 Second, NW 3435 Princeton Dr., NE
Albuquerque, NM 87102 Albuquerque, NM 87102 Albuguerque, NM 87107
(505)243-2817 (505) 243-9793 (505) 884-1752

Reed Construction Data/CMD Plan Room
3351 Candelaria NE, Suite D

Albuquerque, NM 87107

(505) 881-8590

Copies of the above documents may be obtained at the offices of:

Albuquerque Reprographics
4716 McLeod NE
Albuquerque, NM 87109
(505) 884-0862

In accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, and upon depositing the sum of $150.00 for each set of documents,
prospective bidders may obtain a copy of the bidding and construction documents. Any prospective bidder upon
returning the documents in good condition within (10) days, following the bid opening, will be refunded that deposit.
General Contractors may receive up to 3 sets of the bidding and construction documents. All other prospective
bidders may receive only 1 set.

The bidder’s attention is directed to the requirements of the Contract Documents for adherence to applicable federal,
state, and local statutes, regulations and ordinances, payment of minimum wages, and payment of taxes.

Bid security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the amount of the Bid must accompany each Bid in accordance
with the Instructions to Bidders. The successful bidder shall provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond in
the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract. Minimum wage rates and benefits shall be paid as
determined by the State of New Mexico Department of Labor, and the U.S, Department of Labor.

The Owner reserves the right to waive irregularities and to reject any Bids. Bids shall be good for 30 days following
the opening of the bids and may be withdrawn pending Owner action.

00100 -1



A Pre-bid Conference will be held at New Mexico Junior College located at the above address at 9:00 am local time,
on June 1, 2004 at the Ben Alexander Student Center.

Refer to the Instructions To Bidders, contained in the bidding and construction documents, for instructions related to
clarifications and addenda regarding the bidding and construction documents.

Pre-Bid Conference Date: June 1, 2004

Bid Opening Date: June 22, 2004

Publication Dates (Albuquerque Journal, Albuquerque Tribune, Hobbs News-Sun, Lubbock Avalanche-Journal,
Odessa American and Midland Reporter-Telegram.)

First Publication: May 26, 2004
Second Publication: May 30, 2004
Third Publication: June 8, 2004
END OF SECTION

00100 -2



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00200 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

EXAMINATION:

Bidders shall familiarize themselves with federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting
performance of the Work and employment of labor; and carefully examine the proposed Contract Documents and the
construction site to obtain first-hand knowledge of all proposed Work and existing improvements and conditions at
the site. Contractors will not be entitled to any additional compensation or any extension of the Contract Time for
conditions that can be determined by examining the site and the Bidding and Contract Documents. Submission of a
Bid constitutes a representation by the bidder that the bidder has made all appropriate examinations, investigations
and tests and has made provision as to the cost thereof in his bid. It is the responsibility of each bidder, sub-
contractor, and material supplier to examine the documents for the work of all trades that may have an effect on the
work that the bidder, sub-contractor, or supplier intends to perform.

INTERPRETATIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AND ADDENDA:

Submit all questions regarding the proposed Contract Documents to the Project Architect (refer to the Project
Directory, Section 00001) in writing at least seven (7} calendar days prior to Bid Opening. Include any
discrepancies, omissions, or ambiguities noted by any Bidder. If appropriate, the Architect will issue a written
Addendum that shall thereafter become part of the Bid Documents and Contract Documents. Architect shall give no
oral interpretations and, if given, such shall not be binding upon Owner unless included in a written Addendum
issued prior to Bid Opening. No Addenda will be issued later than three {3) days before Bid Opening, except an
Addendum, if necessary, postponing the date for receipt of Bids or withdrawing the request for Bids. All bids shall
be responsive to and include the provisions of all Addenda issued prior to Bid Opening. It is the intent of the Owner
to select alternates as a means to achieve the amount of funding available to construct the project. The alternates will
be selected in random order by the Owner to fit the construction budget.

SUBSTITUTIONS:

The Owner reserves the right to be the sole judge as to whether or not a different process, type of equipment, or kind
of material offered is in fact the equal to that specified. Requests to use unspecified products will not be
reviewed during the bidding period, Prior approval to use unspecified products will not be given. Substitution
Requests to use unspecified products will be considered after Contract award under procedures specified in Section
01600 - Product Requirements.

BID FORMS:

Bids must be submitted on the prescribed Bid Form without alteration. (See Section 00410). Fill in all blank spaces
neatly, in ink, or typewritten. In case of a conflict between the words and figures, the words will govern. Bids shall
be signed with the name and title/position of the signatory typed below the signature. If the Bid is submitted by a
sole proprietorship, it shall be signed by the individual Owner. If the Bid is submitted by a joint venture or general
or limited partnership, the name and address of each joint venture member or general partner must be listed by an
authorized general partner or joint venture member. If the Bid is submitted by a corporation, the corporate name
and business address must be given and the Bid signed by either the President or an authorized Vice President of the
Corporation. Include the New Mexico Contractor's License Number and the resident Contractor's Certificate
Number. Any written changes must be initialed by the person signing the Bid. Bids in which acceptance is in some
manner restricted or conditioned by the bidder will be reviewed by the Owner. If the limitations imposed are not in
the best interest of the Owner, or are prejudicial to other bidders, the bid will be rejected.

BID SECURITY:

Each Bid must be accompanied by a Bid Bond (properly executed on AIA Document A310, or otherwise supplied in
a form satisfactory to the Owner, issued by a surety that is both an approved surety on the current Federal Register
for approved securities issued by the U.S, Department of Treasury. The surety shall also be currently licensed and
otherwise authorized to issue surety bonds in New Mexico, such bond to be in an amount of not less than 5% of the
Bid, for the benefit of the Owner. The bond shall be given as a guarantee that the bidder will enter into an
Agreement with the Owner as provided for in the Bidding and Contract Documents and furnish the required

00200 - 1



payment/performance bonds and insurance certificates and endorsements if awarded the contract for the Project. If
the Bidder’s Bid is accepted by the Owner within 30 days after Bid Opening, then should the bidder fail to execute
the Agreement called for in the proposed Contract Documents and deliver to Owner the required bonds/insurance
certificates/insurance endorsements, and other documents called for in the proposed Contract Documents within 10
days after Notice of Award (or satisfactory evidence that such documents will be furnished); then Owner may collect
on the bond and recover appropriate damages and terminate any and all rights or interest of the Bidder with respect
to the Project or the Work.

Unless all bids are rejected by Owner, the Bid Security of the lowest responsive bidder at Bid Opening shall be
retained until execution of the Agreement; unless prior to the Notice of Award, but after 30 days following the Bid
Opening, such bidder has withdrawn his Bid in writing and delivered to the Owner. The Bid Security of
unsuccessful bidders shall be returned to them promptly.

SUBCONTRACTORS (NEW MEXICO SUBCONTRACTORS FAIR PRACTICES ACT):

Names and addresses of each subcontractor, under contract to the Bidder, who will perform labor or render services
to the Bidder in an amount in excess of the listing threshold of either $5,000.00 or 1/2 of 1% of 90% of the
estimated project cost, whichever is greater shall be provided on List of Subcontractors Form. See Sections
00430 and 00431 and the Bid Form, pursuant to the New Mexico Subcontractors Fair Practices Act. There shall be
only one subcontractor listed for each classification. If a Bidder fails to specify a subcontractor in excess of the
listing threshold, the Bidder represents that he is fully qualified to perform that portion himself. If after the award of
the contract, the Contractor subcontracts any portion of the work, except as provided in the Subcontractors Fair
Practices Act, the Contractor shall be guilty of violation of the Subcontractors Fair Practices Act and subject to the
penalties provided therein. The Owner reserves the right to disqualify subcontractors and suppliers in accord with
the Conditions of the Contract. Contractor may not change any of the subcontractors/suppliers so listed without
Owner's consent. Owner's right to object following Notice of Award and execution of the Agreement to any
subcontractor/Supplier listed shall be as provided in the Contract Documents (particularly Article 5 of the General
Conditions as amended by the Supplementary Conditions). Should Owner object to any listed supplier or
subcontractor prior to the Notice of Award, and Contractor fails to promptly secure an alternative
subcontractor/supplier acceptable to Owner, then such shall be a basis for Owner rejecting a Bid as unresponsive.

SUBMITTAL OF BID:

Deliver Bid Form, Bid Security, and Listing of Subcontractors for Compliance with the Subcontractor’s Fair
Practices Act in an opaque sealed envelope to the location identified in the Invitation to Bid. Identify the envelope
with the project name, bid number, name of the Bidder, and the time and date of the Bid Opening. Each bid must be
submitted on the prescribed forms. All blank spaces for bid prices must be filled in with ink or typewritten.
Corrections shall be initialed in ink by person signing the bid.

MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL:

A bid containing a mistake discovered before bid opening may be modified or withdrawn by a bidder prior to the
time set for bid opening by delivering written or telegraphic notice to the location designated in the invitation for
bids as the place where bids are to be received. After bid opening, no modifications in bid prices or other provisions
of bid shall be permitted.

BID OPENING:

Bids will be opened and publicly read aloud. Bids received after the time and date established by the Bid Opening
shall be returned unopened. The reading of Bids is for information only and is not to be construed as acceptance or
rejection by the Owner.

PROTEST:

Any bidder who is aggrieved in connection with a procurement action may protest to the Owner. The protest shall
be submitted in writing not more than 15 calendar days after the fact or occurrences giving rise thereto.

00200 - 2



DISQUALIFICATION:

The Owner reserves the right to disqualify or reject any or all Bids, before or after opening, The Procurement Code,
Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA, imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the
New Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

AWARD:

Owner reserves the right to select the schedule(s) and appropriate combination of Base Bids plus Alternates under
which the Bids are compared and any contract awarded; to reject any and all Bids; and to waive any irregularities in
any Bid. The listed order of alternates is not prioritized. The Owner may select any alternates from any position to
yield the lowest responsive bid at the discretion of the Owner.

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT/COMPLIANCE WITH BID INSTRUCTIONS:

By submitting a Bid, each bidder acknowledges his understanding of these Instructions to Bidders and his
willingness to comply with the requirements of the Bid Documents. If the Bidder's Bid is accepted by Owner, such
Bidder shall execute the Agreement and provide the instruments/documents called for in the Bid Documents (or in
the proposed Contract Documents) within ten (10) working days after the Notice of Award, subject to forfeiture of
its Bid security if such is not timely done. Bidder further acknowledges his understanding of the
payment/performance bond requirements and insurance requirements called for in the proposed Contract Documents.

RESIDENT PREFERENCE;

It will be the sole responsibility of the Bidders requesting consideration for Resident Preference at Bid Opening to
submit to the State Purchasing Agent the questionnaire for Resident Contractor’s Certification and to receive
approval and a certification number from the State Purchasing Agent, which must be included on the Bid Proposal,
prior to the Bid Opening. Requests for qualification for Residents Contractor's Preference after Bid Opening will not
be considered.

WAGE RATES:

It is the Contractor’s responsibility to be acquainted with and comply with State Regulations regarding payment of
wages on public projects. Wage rates as established by the New Mexico State Labor and Industrial Commission
shall be paid by the contractor. Compliance is a part of this bid. Refer to Article 15 of the Supplementary
Conditions.

REGISTRATION OF CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS:
It is the Bidder’s responsibility to provide proof of compliance with the requirements for registration of Contractors

and Subcontractors, according to the New Mexico Public Works Minimum Wage Act, for the Labor Enforcement
Fund. Proof of compliance shall be provided to the Architect and the Owner prior to bid award.

END OF SECTION

00200 - 3



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00320 - GEOTECHNICAL DATA

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 INVESTIGATION

A. A geotechnical investigation was conducted at the site, the results of which are to be found following this
Section.

B. These data are for information only and not intended as representations or warranties of continuity of
conditions at the site. The Owner and Architect do not warrant these data and interpretations of the data
for accuracy, true location, and extent. Bidders and the Contractor are required to interpret these data, and

make additional geotechnical investigations as they determine necessary, for the proper execution of the
work.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (Not Used)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (Not Used)

END OF SECTION

Geotechnical Report Follows

00320 -1



BY (BIDDER)

(ADDRESS)

2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00410 - BID FORM

To New Mexico Junior College (hereinafter called “OWNER™)

1.

The undersigned (hereinafter called "Bidder”) in compliance with your invitation for bids for the construction of the Western Heritage
Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center, New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico having carefully examined
the contract documents and the site of the proposed work, and being familiar with all conditions surrounding the construction of the
proposed project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies, and to
construct the project in accordance with the contract documents, within the time set forth herein, and at the lJump sum prices stated
below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract documents of which this
proposal is a part. All amounts shall be shown in both words and figures. In case of discrepancies, the amount shown in words will
govemn.

Total Base Bid: Bid Lot ‘A’ and Bid Lot ‘B’ Combined: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as the Base Bid in the
specifications and shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

A. Bid Lot ‘A’ of Base Bid — Western Heritage Center: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as the Base Bid in the
specifications and shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)

(not including NMGRT){Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

B. Bid Lot ‘B’ of Base Bid — Ben Alexander Student Learning Center: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as the Base
Bid in the specifications and shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number One: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Two: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

{Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT){Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Three: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and
shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
{not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Four: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and
shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
{not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Five: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

00410 -1



10.

11.

12,

16.

17.

18.

19.

Additive Alternate Number Six: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

{Dollars)($)
{not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Seven: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and
shown on the plans for the lump sum price of*

{Dollars)($)
{not including NMGRT){Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Eight: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and
shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Nine: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
{(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

Additive Alternate Number Ten: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and shown
on the plans for the lump sum price of:

(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on centificates for payment)

. Additive Alternate Number Eleven: Bidder agrees to perform the Work described as Alternate Number One in Section 01230 and

shown on the plans for the lump sum price of:
(Dollars)($)
(not including NMGRT)(Reimbursement for NMGRT will be added on certificates for payment)

. Addenda: The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the following addenda to the drawings and project manuals, all of the

provisions and requirements of which addenda have been taken into consideration in the preparation of this proposal.
Addendum No. Dated Addendum No. Dated
Addendum No, Dated Addendum No. Dated

. The undersigned declares that the only person or parties interested in the bid as principals are those named herein; that the bid is made

without collusion with any firm or corporation; that he has carefully examined alt contract documents and that he has made a personal
examination of the site of the work; that he is to furnish all the necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction,
and that he will do all the work and furnish all the materials specified in the manner and the time prescribed.

The undersigned hereby agrees to execute the said contract and bond within ten (10) days, or such other time as may be allowed in
writing by the Owner, after receiving notification of acceptance of bid. It is hereby mutually understood and agreed that in case the
undersigned does not, he or she forfeits the accompanying check or bid bond to the Owner as liquidated damages, and said Owner may
proceed to award the contract to others.

The undersigned hereby agrees to commence the work within ten (10) days or such further time as may be allowed in writing by the
Owner after receiving notification of award of contract. The undersigned further agrees that all work items will be completed within
363 consecutive calendar days.

The undersigned proposes te furnish a bond in the sum of one hundred (100) percent of bid amount as surety conditioned for the full,
complete and faithful performance of this contract, and to indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any damage or loss for which
the Owner may become liable by the default of said contractor, or by reason of any neglect or carelessness on the part of said contractor,
his agents or employees, or by or on account of any act of omission of said contractor, his servants, agents or employees, or
subcontractors, in performance of this contract.

A. The undersigned will guarantee all work performed under these plans, specifications and contract, and shall repair and maintain
same until the date of acceptance by the Qwner,
B. The undersigned tenders herewith, as a bid guarantee, for which receipt has been given, a certified check or bid bond in the

amount of five (5) percent of the bid amount drawn to the order of the Owner.

Bidder agrees that this Bid Proposal may not be withdrawn for a period of thirty (30) calendar days after the Bid Opening. If the
contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the successful Bidder a Notice of Award within thirty (30) calendar days after the Bid
opening.

00410 -2



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

The undersigned agrees within ten (10} days after the agreement is executed, to deliver to the Owner the certificates of insurance and
original insurance policies required in the General Conditions,

The undersigned hereby agrees to pay the Owner the sum of Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($750) as liquidated damages for each
consecutive calendar day of delay until the Work is substantially complete.

Attached is the required Bid Security and List of Subcontractors. If requested, Bidder agrees to furnish to Owner all information and
data necessary for Owner to determine the qualifications and ability of Bidder to perform the Work, including a Contractor’s
Qualification Statement {such as AIA Document A305).

Bidder certifies that proof of compliance with the requirements for registration of Contractors and Subcontractors, according to the New
Mexico Public Works Minimum Wage Act, for the Labor Enforcement Fund, will be provided to the Architect and the Owner prior to
bid award.

This Bid Proposal is hereby respectfully submitted. The signatory hereto certifies and warrants that he/she has full authority to submit
this Bid Proposal on behalf of Bidder.

(Name of Bidder)(Type or Print)(Specify if sole proprietorship,
partnership, or corporation, and state of incorporation)

By  (Signature) Date
Corporate Seal:

(Name)

(Title)(Print Name & Title of Bidder’s Authorized Representative)

{Address of Bidder) (Bidder’s New Mexico Contractor’s
License No. and Classification)

(Telephone Number of Bidder)

END OF SECTION

00410-3



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center

New Mexico Junior College,

Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00430 - LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS RESIDENT BIDDER PREFERENCE

FOR COMPLIANCE WITH SUBCONTRACTORS FAIR PRACTICES ACT (SECTION 00431)

It is the Bidder’s sole responsibility to execute this listing in compliance with the New Mexico Subcontractor’s Fair
Practices Act. The following listing must include the NAME, LOCATION OF PLACE OF BUSINESS, PHONE
NUMBER, CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE NUMBER, and CATEGORY OF WORK which will be done by each
subcontractor on the list. List only one subcontractor for each category of work, FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH

THESE REQUIREMENTS WILL MAKE THE BID NON-RESPONSIVE and the bid will be rejected. This page
shall be attached to the Bid Proposal.

The Bidder must list all Subcontractors to be used for work, when the subcontract amount exceeds the threshold

amount of $27,500,

(Use additional sheets if necessary).

NAME OF SUBCONTACTOR AND
LOCATION OF PLACE OF BUSINESS

(Name)

(Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

{(Name)

{Location & Phone No.}
(License No.)

{(Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
{License No.)

{Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

(Name)

(Location & Phone No.)

(License No.}

00430 -1

CATEGORY OF WORK
OF SUBCONTRACTOR

{Category)

{Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)



NAME OF SUBCONTACTOR AND
LOCATION OF PLACE OF BUSINESS
(Name)

(Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

(Name)

(Location & Phone No.)
(License No.}

(Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

(Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
{License No.)

{Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

{Name)

(Location & Phone No.}
{License No.)

{Name)

{Location & Phone No.)
(License No.)

(Name)

(Location & Phone No.)

(License No.)

CATEGORY OF WORK
OF SUBCONTRACTOR

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

(Category)

00430 -2



RESIDENT BIDDER PREFERENCE

New Mexico procurement law provides for a five percent (5%} residential preference. A fully qualified bidder who
meets state requirements shall be awarded a contract in preference to a fully qualified non-resident bidder whenever
the resident bidder, whose bid is nearest to the low bid of the non-residential bidder, is made lower when multiplied
by a factor of 0.95. This does not apply when federal funds are being used. Any New Mexico firm claiming
preference will insert the residential preference number as issued by the State Purchasing Department in the
appropriate space as provided in the bid documents. Procurement of the number is the responsibility of the bidder.

Note that there is no charge for the number, but it does involve an application process.
Interested bidders should contact:

State of New Mexico

General Services Department

Purchasing Division

Joseph M. Montoya State Building, Room 2016
1100 St. Francis Drive

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

Telephone: (505) 827-0472

END OF SECTION

00430 -3



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00431 - SUBCONTRACTORS FAIR PRACTICES ACT

This Public Works Project is subject to the provisions of the Subcontractors Fair Practices Act (Chapter 18, Laws of
1988; Section 13-4-31 through 13-4-43 NMSA 1978).

A,
B.

The listing threshold is: $27,500.

List of Subcontractors Required: The Bidder shall define the categories of subcontractors in the bid and
shall list on Page 00430-1, no more than one subcontractor for each such category, PROVIDED
HOWEVER, that such listing shall not include subcontractors whose work does not exceed the threshold
dollar amount given in subparagraph A, above. Such list shall give the name of each subcontractor under
subcontract to the Bidder who will perform work or labor or render service to the Bidder in an amount
exceeding the threshold stated in subparagraph A.

All subcontractors whose estimated work exceeds the threshold shall be listed at the time the Bid is
submitted to OWNER.

The apparent low Bidder may allow a subcontract that exceeds the threshold amount to be voluntarily
assigned or transferred or to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the
original bid, only if the OWNER gives prior written approval.

No Bidder whose Bid is accepted shall sublet or subcontract any portion of the Work in an amount
exceeding the threshold amount given in subparagraph A, above, where the original bid did not designate a
subcontractor, unless:

1) The Bidder received no bid for that category (note: the Bidder must designate on the list of
subcontractors required in subparagraph B., above, that "no bid was received”), or

2) The Work is pursuant to a Change Order that causes changes or deviations from the original
Contract.

Delays Attributable to Hearings Required by the Subcontractors Fair Practices Act: In the event a hearing
is required pursuant to the provisions of the Subcontractors Fair Practices Act and a delay in the Work is
caused as a result of a subcontractor protesting its substitution, the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to
an increase in the Contract Price or Contract Time.

Applicability of Section: This section shall apply to: (ONLY ONE will be checked as applicable to this
Project)

X 1) All work required of the CONTRACTOR

2) Only the following work required of CONTRACTOR (list areas):

3 All work required of CONTRACTOR except (list areas):

END OF SECTION

00431 -1



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00432 - MINIMUM WAGE RATES

The New Mexico State Minimum Wage Rates applicable for this Contract, as evidenced by the attached
determination by the New Mexico Labor and Industrial Commission, shall be paid to all workers employed in the
performance of the work. See Article 15, Supplementary Conditions.

END OF SECTION

{Wage Rates to Follow)

00432 -1



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00500 - OWNER/CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

The form of Owner/Contractor Agreement to be executed is AIA Document A101, 1997 Edition or current edition.

END OF SECTION

00500 - 1



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00700 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

The General Conditions of this Contract shall be A.LA. Document A201, 1997 edition or current edition, "General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction," and is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents by reference,

END OF SECTION

00700 - 1



2004 Building Program
Western Heritage Center and Ben Alexander Student Learning Center
New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, New Mexico

SECTION 00800 - SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS

THE “GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION", AIA DOCUMENT A201, 1997
EDITION, ARTICLES 1 THROUGH 14 INCLUSIVE, IS HEREBY MADE PART OF THE SPECIFICATIONS
THE SAME AS IF REPRODUCED HERE, IN FULL, EXCEPT AS MODIFIED, RESCINDED OR
SUPPLEMENTED BY THESE SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS, WHICH TAKE PRECEDENCE. THOSE
PORTIONS OF THE GENERAL CONDITIONS THAT ARE NOT ALTERED BY THESE SUPPLEMENTARY
CONDITIONS SHALL REMAIN IN FORCE AND EFFECT AS PUBLISHED. COPIES OF THE GENERAL
CONDITIONS MAY BE EXAMINED AT THE OFFICES OF THE ARCHITECT, OR MAY BE PURCHASED
AT NOMINAL CHARGE FROM THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK
AVENUE NW, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006.

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

1.1 DEFINITIONS:
At the end of paragraph 1.1.1, add the following sentence:
The Form of the Agreement between Owner and Contractor shall be the American Institute of
Architects Document A101, 1997 edition.

12 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:
Add the following 1.2.1;

1.2.1 In case of conflicts or discrepancies between the Drawings, between Drawings and Specifications,
and between the various requirements of the Specifications, or within or between any documents
pertaining to the Work, the Architect will determine which document or part takes precedence in
accordance with paragraph 4.2.11. In general, but not without exception, at the sole discretion of
the Architect, the more stringent or higher cost requirement is required. Submit a Request For
Information (RFI) to the Architect for an interpretation of the requirements prior to proceeding
with any Work associated with conflicts or discrepancies between the Drawings, between
Drawings and Specifications, and between the various requirements of the Specifications, or within
or between any documents pertaining to the Work.

1.6 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS
OF SERVICE
Add the following 1.6.2:
1.6.2 CONTRACTOR'’S USE CF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT
1.6.2.1 At the request of the Contractor, Architect, at Architect’s sole discretion, may furnish to the

Contractor versions of the Instruments of Service in electronic format. The Contract Documents
executed or identified in accordance with subparagraph 1.5.1 shall prevail in case of an
inconsistency with subsequent versions made through electronic manipulation by computer.

1.6.2.2 Owner and Contractor shall sign a CAD File Release and Indemnity, in a format as presented by
the Architect, prior to transmission of any electronic format files to the Contractor. No files will
be transmitted for use to the Contractor without Owner’s and Contractor’s signatures on the form,
Contractor may be required to sign CAD File Release and Indemnity, or similar, forms for Design
Consultant files, in addition to the Architect’s form.

1.6.2.3 The Contractor shall not transfer or reuse Instruments of Service in electronic format or machine
readable form without pricr written consent of the Architect.

1624 The Owner and Contractor agree that upon signature, the conditions of use contained on the
Architect’s CAD File Release and Indemnity form are binding as if included in the Contract.

00800 - 1



CAD File requests shall be made sufficiently in advance of Contractor’s intended use of the files to
allow Architect a minimum of 10 working days to prepare files for release to Contractor.

Contractor shall pay to Architect $100.00 fee for each CAD File request, payable in advance of
transfer of any file to Contractor by Architect. Contractor may be required to pay additional fees
for Design Consultant CAD file requests.

INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER:
Delete paragraph 2.2.5, and substitute the following:

The Contractor will be furnished free of charge 10 copies of Drawings and Project Manuals,
Additional sets will be furnished at the cost of reproduction, postage and handling.

Add subparagraph 2.2.6, as follows:

The Owner will procure and bear the costs of structural test and special inspections as required by

Add the following subparagraph 3.2.4:

The Owner shall be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum, by Change Order, amounts paid to
the Architect for the Architect to evaluate and respond to the Contractor’s requests for information,
where such information was available to the Contractor from careful study and comparison of the
Contract Documents, field conditions, other information previously provided by the Owner or
Architect, Contractor prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or

LABOR AND MATERIALS:
To paragraph 3.4.1, add the following new sub-paragraphs 3.4.1.1and 3.4.1.2:

Not later than 20 days from the Contract Date, the Contractor shall provide a list of the names of
the manufacturers proposed to be used and, where applicable, the name of the installer. This list
supplements and expands the Subcontractor List submitted with the Bid Form.

The Architect will promptly reply in writing to the Contractor stating whether the Owner or the
Architect has objection to any such entity. Ifadequate data on any proposed manufacturer or
installer is not available, the Architect may state that action will be deferred until the Contractor
provides further data. Failure of the Owner or the Architect to reply promptly shall not constitute a
waiver of any of the requirements of the Contract Documents and all preducts furnished by the
listed manufacturer must conform thereto.

No alcoholic beverage is permitted on the project site. No non-prescription drugs are permitted.
No firearms or regulated weapons are permitted.

1.6.2.5
1.6.2.6
ARTICLE 2 OWNER:
22
2.2.5
22.6
the applicable building code.
ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR:
324
documentation.
3.4
34.1.1
34.1.2
Add the following 3.4.3.1:
3431
36 TAXES:

Add new paragraphs 3.6.2 and 3.6.3 as follows:

00800 - 2



3.6.2

3.63

3.7

3.8
3822

3.9

3.9.2

The Contract Sum excludes the applicable New Mexico gross receipts tax or applicable local
option tax, but the Contractor shall be required to collect from the Owner and to pay the applicable
tax including any increase or decrease in the applicable tax becoming effective after the date the
contract is entered into.

Applicable gross receipts tax or applicable local option tax shall be shown as a separate amount on
each billing or request for payment made by the Contractor. The Contractor shall present a
separate invaice to the Owner for payment of applicable taxes with each application for payment.

PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES:
Add the following to 3.7.1:

The Contractor shall secure, arrange, and pay for all necessary utility extensions and connections.
Contact utility companies including gas, electric, sewer, storm drainage, water, telephone, cable,
data, and others to verify, coordinate and pay for costs associated with service providers including
but not limited to expansion charges, service lines, equipment, connection fees, routing to required
service connection locations, service line instaltations, trenching for utility installation, and piping,
conduits, fittings and testing for all utilities. Coordinate and provide complete and operable utility
services and forward all service agreements requiring signature by others to the Owner.

Add the following to 3.7.2:

In addition to other agencies that require notices, the Contractor is required to pay all fees and
submit a Notice of Intent to Discharge and file a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and
obtain a permit for all site disturbances of 5 acres or more with the:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW

Washington DC 20460

http://www.epa.gov/ New Mexico is in Region 6.

A local contact to assist with questions is:

NM Environmental Dept.
Box 26110

Santa Fe, NM 87502
505-827-2827

ALLOWANCES:

Delete the semicolon at the end of 3.8.2.2 and add the following:

“, except that if installation is included as part of an allowance, the installation and labor cost for
greater or lesser quantities of Work shall be determined in accordance with Subparagraph 7.3.6;”

SUPERINTENDENT:
Add t0 3.9.1 as follows:

At any time, when any Work is proceeding at the project site, including after normal hours or on
weekends, the Contractor’s Superintendent and necessary assistants shall be present at the site.

Add new paragraphs 3.9.2 as follows:
Selection of the Superintendent by the Contractor shall be subject to approval by the Owner as

provided in this paragraph. The individual who becomes Superintendent at the Commencement of
the Work shatl remain Superintendent throughout the course of the Work unless the Owner

00800 -3



392l

3922

1923

3.10

3.10.1.1

312

jn

requests that the Superintendent be replaced or the Superintendent ceases to be employed by the
Contractor.

Upon execution of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Contractor shall give the Owner written
notice of the identity, resume, and qualifications (including a list of prior projects on which
employed) of the person proposed by the Contractor for the position of Superintendent. If the
Owner gives oral or written notice to the Contractor within seven (7) days thereafter that the
person proposed is unacceptable for any reason, the Contractor shall name and state the
qualifications of an alternate who shall be subject to approval in a like manner. This procedure
shall be repeated until the Owner expresses no objection to the Contractor’s proposed
Superintendent.

The Contractor shall not assign the duties of Superintendent to any person who has not been
approved in this manner. If, during the course of the Work, the Owner gives notice in writing to
the Contractor that the person serving as Superintendent has become unacceptable for any reason
the Contractor shall within fifteen (15) days thereafter name and state the qualifications of a
replacement who shall be subject to approval as provided above. If the Superintendent is to be
replaced at the request of the Contractor (such as in the case of the Superintendent’s resignation or
discharge from employment by the Contractor), the Contractor shal! give the Owner notice in
advance of its intention to replace the Superintendent, the reasons therefore, and the identity and
qualifications of the proposed replacement, who shall be subject to approval as provided above.

The Owner shall not have control over, and shall not be deemed to have control over, the acts or
omissions to act of the Superintendent. The Superintendent remains an employee of the
Contractor, subject only to the Owner’s right to approve of the identity of the person occupying the
position.

CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES:
Add new paragraph 3.10.1.1 as follows:

The Owner may authorize construction activities to commence prior to completion of the Drawings
and Specifications. If the Drawings and Specifications require further development at the time that
the initial Construction Schedule is prepared, the Contractor shall 1) allow time in the schedule for
development of the Drawings and Specifications by the Architect, including time for review by the
Owner and Contractor and for the Centractor’s coordination of Subcontractors’ Work, and 2)
furnish to the Owner in a timely manner information regarding anticipated market conditions and
Construction cost; availability of labor, materials, and equipment; and proposed methods,
sequences, and time schedules for Construction of the Work.

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES:
Add to 3.12.8 as follows:

Architect’s notations on approved submittals have the same effect as an Architect’s Supplemental
Instruction or Minor Change in The Work under Article 7.4. Make revisions noted. Notify
Architect in writing if noted modifications cannot be made due to conflicting circumstances in the
field, in other contract documents, or for other reasons. If the Contractor believes that the
Architect’s notations constitute a change that results in added cost or time, notify the Architect in
writing within the time limits of Article 4.3. Do not proceed with changes that result in added cost
or time until the matter is resolved in accordance with other provisions of the contract.

Add subparagraph 3.12.11.to paragraph 3.12, as follows:
The Architect’s review of Contractor’s submittals will be limited to examination of an initial

submittal and one resubmittal. Architect’s review of additional submittals, due to Contractor’s
errors or omissions in the initial and one resubmittal, will be made only with the consent of the

00800 - 4



Owner, after notification by the Architect to the Owner and Contractor. The Owner shall be
entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum, by execution of a Change Order, amounts paid to the
Architect for evaluation of additional submittals.

3.18 INDEMNIFICATION:
Add new paragraphs 3.18.3 and 3.18.4 as follows:
3.18.3 Agreement of the Contractor to indemnify the Owner under this paragraph 3.18 shall not extend to

liability, claims, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorney fees, arising out of bodily injury

to persons or damage to property which in turn arise out of:

A. The preparation or approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, change orders,
designs, or specifications by the Owner or its agents or employees; or

B. The giving of or the failure to give directions or instructions by the Owner or its agents or
employees, where such giving or failure to give directions or instructions is the primary cause
of bodily injury to persons or damage to property.

3.184 The Contractor shall indemnify and save the Owner harmless from any loss, liability, and expense,
including attorney fees, which result from any claimed irregularity in the awarding of the Contract,
which irregularity is, in whole or in part, the Contractor’s fault.

ARTICLE 4 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT:
4.2 ARCHITECT’S ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT:
Add to paragraph 4.2.2 the following 4.2.2.1:

4221 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for compensation paid to the Architect for additional
site visits made necessary by the fault, neglect, or request of the Contractor. A Change Order
reducing the Contract Sum will be executed.

4.2.10 Delete from paragraph 4.2.10 the second sentence in its entirety.
42,13 Add to paragraph 4.2,13 the following sentences:

The term “aesthetic effect” refers, but is not limited, to color, texture, profile, and relationship of
masses. The Architect shall be the sole interpreter of the design intent with respect to such
matters, but the Architect’s authority with respect thereto shall not contravene any other rights of
either the Owner or the Contractor ascribed to them by other provisions of the contract.

4.3 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES:

43.2 TIME LIMITS ON CLAIMS:
Change “21 days” to “7 days”, in both occurrences.

43.7 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME:
Add to sub-paragraph 4.3.7.2 as follows:

Noermal and reasonably anticipated weather at the project site includes severe conditions,
including, but not limited to: strong sustained winds and gusty winds, violent thunderstorms, heavy
rains, heavy snowfall, icing, periods of high and low humidity, pericds of severe heat and cold, and
dramatic, abrupt changes in conditions. Extensions in time for weather delays will only be granted
for conditions exceeding such normal weather for the area, based on independent weather agency
records for the area of the Project site. Severe weather that exceeds the weather normally
predictable (record setting conditions) for the duration of the Contract shall be considered
unusually inclement weather.

00800 - 5



4.3.7.3

4.3.74

4375

4376

4,3.10

4.6

4.6.2.1

4.6.2.2

4.6.2.3

Add sub-paragraphs 4.3.7.3, 4.3.7.4, 4.3.7.5, and 4.3.7.6 as follows:

No payment or compensation of any kind, other than an authorized extension of time where
applicable, shall be made to the Contractor for any Excusable Delay. Excusable Delay is defined
as any event that delays the work of the critical path that is beyond the control and without the fault
or negligence of the Contractor or Owner; caused by events or circumstances such as acts of God,
acts of the public enemy, intervention of another entity not a part of this Contract, acts of the
government other than the Ownet, fires, floods, and unusually inclement weather as defined in
43.7.2.

No compensation of any kind shall be made for an Inexcusable Delay. Inexcusable Delay is
defined as a delay caused by events or circumstances within the control of the Contractor, such as,
but not limited to: inadequate crewing, inadequate equipment, inadequate supervision, slow
submittals or late ordering of materials, failure to coordinate the work, etc.; which may have been
avoided by the exercise of care, prudence, foresight, proper planning, or due diligence on the part
of the Contractor. The Contractor shall correct any condition causing an Inexcusable Delay as
required to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.

All claims for extension of time and/or increased compensation shall be made in writing to the
Architect no more than seven (7) calendar days after the occurrence of the event causing the delay;
otherwise, they shall be permanently waived by the Contractor. Claims for increase in the Contract
Time shall set forth in detail the circumstances that form the basis of the claim, the date upon
which each cause of delay began to affect the progress of the Work, initial estimate of the probable
affect of delay on the progress of the Work, the date upon which each cause of delay ceased to
affect the progress of the Work, and the number of days increase in the Contract Time claimed as a
consequence of each cause of delay. The Contractor shall supply such supporting documentation
as the Owner may require, including, but not limited to, where appropriate, a revised construction
schedule indicating all of the activities affected by the circumstances forming the basis of the claim
for delay.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to a separate increase in the Contract Time or compensation
for each one of the number of causes of delay which may have concurrent or interrelated effects on
the progress of the Work, or any cause of delay that is concurrent with an Inexcusable Delay.

CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:
Add the following sentence t0 4.3.10:

If, before expiration of 30 days from the date of execution of this Agreement, the Owner obtains by
separate agreement and furnishes to the Contractor a similar mutual waiver of all claims from the
Architect against the Contractor for consequential damages which the Architect may incur as a
result of any act or omission of the Owner or Contractor, then the waiver of consequential damages
by the Owner and Contractor contained in this subparagraph 4.3.10 shall be applicable to claims
by the Contractor against the Architect.

ARBITRATION:
Ta paragraph 4.6.2, add the following new sub-paragraphs 4.6.2.1thru 4.6.2.3:

At the Owner’s option, paragraph 4.6.1, shall not apply to a claim by the Owner against the
Contractor arising under paragraph 3.18 (Indemnification) of Contract.

The reasonable cost of the arbitration proceeding (including attorney and arbitrator’s fees) shall be
borne by the non-prevailing party as determined by the arbitrators.

There shall be three neutral arbitrators, unless the Owner and Contractor specifically agree
otherwise in a subsequent writing. The Owner shall select one arbitrator. The Contractor shall

00800 - 6



ARTICLE 5

52

5.2.1

522

523

5.3

532

ARTICLE 7
7.2

7.2.2

select one arbitrator. The third arbitrator shall be a New Mexico attorney experienced in
construction law and shall be selected by the first two arbitrators. Reasonable discovery shall be
permitted, in the sound discretion of the arbitrators. The arbitration hearing shall be transcribed,
and the arbitrators shall be required to make written findings and conclusions.

SUBCONTRACTORS:

AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE
WORK:
Delete paragraphs 5.2.1,5.2.2, 5.2.3, and 5.2.4 in their entirety and substitute the following:

Contractor shall make no substitution of subcontractors or principal suppliers identified in the list
of subcontractors submitted with the bid unless specifically authorized to do so in advance, in
writing, by the Owner and the Architect, and only in accordance with New Mexico Subcontractors
Fair Practices Act (NMSFPA). Such authorization will be granted or withheld in the sole
discretion of the Owner and Architect.

If replacement of a subcontractor identified in the list of subcontractors becomes necessary due to
circumstances beyond the Contractor’s control and if the Owner and Architect approve such
replacement in writing and authorized by NMSFPA, Contractor shall name the proposed
replacement. The replacement shall be subject to approval by the Owner and Architect after
reasonable notice. If the proposed replacement is not acceptable to Owner or Architect, this
process shall be repeated until the Owner and Architect approve Contractor’s proposed
replacement.

Cost arising from replacement of subcontractor shall be borne entirely by Contractor.

SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS
Add the following 5.3.2:

In accordance with the New Mexico Retainage Act, the Contractor and Subcontractors shall
provide payments to their subcontractors and suppliers for amounts owed for materials delivered
and for Work performed on the Project within seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner,
Contractor, or Subcontractor. If the Contractor or Subcontractor fails to make prompt payment,
the Contractor or Subcontractor shall pay interest beginning on the eighth day at the rate of one
and one half percent of the undisputed amount per month or fraction of a month until payment is
made. These provisions apply to all tiers of subcontracts and suppliers.

CHANGES IN THE WORK:
CHANGE ORDERS:
Delete paragraph 7.2.2 in its entirety and substitute the following:

No changes in the Work shall be made without having prior written approval of the Owner and
Architect. Charges or credits for the Work, covered by Change Order, shall be determined by one,
or a combination of any, of the following methods, as Architect judges appropriate:

1. Unit bid prices previously approved.

2. Anagreed lump sum based on an itemized estimate of the cost.

3. Time and Materials based on the actual cost of:

a. Labor and payroll for changed work, including supervision and foreman;

b. Labor Burden fixed at 31% applied to labor costs including Workmen’s Compensation
and Liability Insurance, Employment Taxes under FICA/Medicare, SUTA and FUTA,
Vacation / Holiday and other labor burden;

¢. Invoiced cost of materials entering permanently into the work;

00800 - 7



d. Actual invoiced cost of fair rental value of construction equipment during the time of use
on the extra work.

¢. Invoiced cost of power and consumable supplies for the operations of power equipment;

f. Overhead and Profit which shall not exceed limits and tiers set forth below:

ALLOWABLE OVERHEAD AND PROFIT
$500 and less $500 to $5,000 Over $5.000

Contractor for work performed by his own forces 25% 20% 15%
Subcontractor for work performed by his own forces 25% 20% 15%
Contractor for work performed by subcontractor 10% 8% 6%

For work exceeding $50,000, the Overhead and Profit values will be subject to negotiation between the Owner and
Contractor,
g. On change orders covering both increases and decreases in the amount of the contract, the
combined overhead and profit shall be allowed on the net increase, or decrease, only.
h. Apply the New Mexico and local Gross Receipts Tax to the sub-total cost.
i.  Adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

Add paragraphs 7.2.3 and 7.2.4 as follows:

7.2.3 In response to each Proposal Request (PR) for a change in the amount of the Contract, the
Contractor shall submit, within 15 days of the date of the PR, an itemized Cost Proposal showing
the estimated cost of the items described in paragraph 7.2.2.3. No Change Order will be approved
without an itemized Cost Proposal from the Contractor. Contractor shall review and certify each
Cost Proposal from a subcontractor or other entity for completeness, accuracy, and validity prior to
submittal to the Architect.

7.2.4 The Architect’s review of Contractor’s Cost Proposals will be limited to examination of an initial
submittal and one resubmittal. Architect’s review of additional submittals, due to Contractor’s
errors or omissions in the initial and one resubmittal, will be made only with the consent of the
Owner, after notification by the Architect to the Owner and Contractor. The Owner shall be
entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum, by execution of a Change Order, amounts paid to the
Architect for evaluation of additional submittals.

7.3 CONSTRUCTICN CHANGE DIRECTIVES:
Delete sub-paragraph 7.3.3.4 entirely and substitute the following:

7.3.34 as provided in paragraph 7.2.2.

Delete paragraph 7.3.6 and sub-paragraphs 7.3.6.1, 7.3.6.2, 7.3.6.3, 7.3.6.4, and 7.3.6.5 in their
entirety and substitute the following:

73.6 If the Contractor does not respond promptly, or disagrees with the method of adjustment in the
contract sum proposed by the Architect, payments shall be made on Architect’s certificate for
payment on the basis of Architect’s method of adjustment pending Architect’s final determination
of cost to Owner.

ARTICLE 8 TIME:
8.1 DEFINITIONS
Add new paragraph 8.1.5 as follows:

00800 -8



83

ARTICLE9 _

9.3
9.3.1

9.6
9.6.1

962

9.7
9.7.1

9.8

9.8.3.1

9.8.5

9.9
9.9.1

9.10

9.10.1.1

The Contract Time shall expire at midnight on the 365 CALENDAR day from the date of the
Notice To Proceed.

DELAYS AND EXTENTIONS OF TIME:
Delete paragraph 8.3.3 in its entirety.

PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION:
APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT:
Change “ten days” to “45 days if Notice of Extended Payment Provision is given under Article
9.6.8, and affixed to all of the plans™.

In the last sentence of 9.3.1, after the word “suppliers”, change the comma to a period, and delete
the words, “and reflecting retainage if provided for in the Contract Documents.” Add the
following sentence to 9.3.1: “No retainage will be held from payments to the Contractor.”

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:

Change “the time provided in the Contract Documents™ to “45 days after the Architect receives the
undisputed Application For Payment unless Notice of Extended Payment Provisions is given under
Article 9.6.8, and affixed to all of the plans.

Add the sentence: Payments by the Contractor and Subcontractors to Subcontractors and suppliers
shall be according to the requirements of 5.3.2 as modified by these Supplementary Conditions,

FAILURE OF PAYMENT:
Change “seven days after the date established in the Contract Documents” to “the time required in
9.6.1 or 9.6.8 (if 9.6.8 is included).”

SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:
Add 9.8.3.1 as follows:

Except with the consent of the Cwner and notification to the Contractor, the Architect will perform
no more than two inspections to determine whether the Work, or a designated portion of the Work,
has attained Substantial Completion in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Owner shall
be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to the Architect for any additional
inspections due to the Contractor’s failure to attain Substantial Completion at the time indicated in
the Contractor’s requests for Substantial Completion inspection.

Delete the second and third sentences in their entirety.

PARTIAL OCCUPANCY FOR USE:
In the second sentence, delete the words, “retainage, if any,”.

FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT:
Add 9.10.1.1 as follows:

Except with the consent of the Owner and notification to the Contractor, the Architect will perform
no more than two inspections to determine whether the Work, or a designated portion of the Work,
has attained Final Completion in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Owner shall be
entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid to the Architect for any additicnal
inspections due to the Contractor’s failure to attain Final Completion at the time indicated in the
Contractor’s requests for Final Completion inspection.

00300-9



9.10.2

9.11
9.11.1

ARTICLE 11
11.1
11.1.1.1

11.1.1.2

11.1.2

11.1.3

Revise the first part of the first sentence to read: “Final payment shall not become due until...” The
remainder of the text shall remain unchanged.

Add new paragraph 9.11 as follows:

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:

The Owner will suffer financial and other loss if the project is not substantially completed on the
date set forth in the Contract Documents. The Contractor, and the Contractor’s surety, shall be
liable for, and shall pay to the Owner, $750 dollars as liquidated damages for each calendar day of
delay after the date established for Substantial Completion in the Contract Documents, until date
that the Work is certified as substantially complete by the Architect.

INSURANCE AND BONDS:

CONTRACTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE:

Delete the semicolon at the end of the sentence and add:

“, including private entities performing Work at the site and exempt from the coverage on account
of number of employees or occupation, which entities shall maintain voluntary compensation
coverage at the same limits specified for mandatory coverage for the duration of the Work
performed by the entities at the site;”

Delete the semicolon at the end of the sentence and add:

“or persons or entities excluded by statute from the requirements of 11.1.1.1 but required by the
Contract Documents to provide the insurance required by 11.1.1.1;”

In the first sentence after the word “written,” delete the rest of the sentence and replace with the
following:

“under insurance forms providing coverage of not less than that set forth as follows, or greater if
required by law.”

Contractor’s automabile liability insurance shall be written under a Business Auto form including
coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. Contractor’s general liability insurance shall
be written under a Commercial General Liability form including Owner’s and Contractor’s
Protective coverage, Premises-Operations coverage, Products-Completed Operations coverage, X,
C, and U coverage, and Contractual Liability coverage specifically including Contractor’s liability
to Owner under paragraph 3.18 (Indemnification). All liability insurance shall be written on an
occurrence basis. The limits of Contractor’s liability insurance shall be not less than the following:

Compensation and Liability

Worker’s Compensation Statutory
Employer’s Liability $100,000.00
Automobile Liability $1 million combined

single limit

Commercial General Liability $1 million combined
single limit
Contractual Liability $1 million combined

single limit

At the end of paragraph 11.1.3, add the following sentence:

00800 - 10



11.5

11.5.1

11.5.1.1

11.5.1.2

11.5.1.3

ARTICLE 12

If this insurance is written on a Commercial General Liability policy form, the certificates shall be
ACORD form 25-8, completed and supplemented in accordance with AIA Document G715,
Instruction Sheet and Supplemental Attachment for ACORD Certificate of Insurance 25-S.

PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND:

Delete 11.5.1 and substitute:

The Contractor shall furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract and payment
obligations arising thereunder. The cost of bonds shall be included in the Contract Sum, The
amount of each bond shall be equal to 100% of the Contract Sum.,

The Contractor shall deliver the required bonds to the Owner no later than three days following the
date that the Agreement is entered into, or if the Work is to be commenced prior to the date of the
Agreement in response to a letter of intent from the Owner, the Contractor shall, prior to
commencement of the Work, submit evidence satisfactory to the Owner that such bonds will be
furnished. In no case shall the bonds be delivered to the Owner later than three days following
commencement of the Work.

The Contractor shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the
surety to affix a certified and current copy of the power of attorney.

The surety providing the Bonds must be authorized to do business in the State of New Mexico, and
must be approved in federal circular 570 as published by the U.S. Treasury Department. Failure to
furnish Bonds in strict compliance with these requirements is grounds for disqualification of the
Contractor and forfeiture of bid security.

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK.:

122.2

12.2.2.4

ARTICLE 13
13.5

13.6
13.6.1

ARTICLE 14

AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:
Add 12.2.2.4 as follows:

Upon request by the Owner and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial
Completion, the Architect will conduct and the Contractor shall attend an inspection and meeting
with the Owner to review the Work. The Contractor shall correct any deficiencies in the Work,
discovered during the inspection or at the meeting, within 7 days following the meeting.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS:
TESTS AND INSPECTICONS:
At the end of paragraphs 13.5.1 and 13.5.3, add the following sentence:

“Contractor shall bear the cost of all failing tests.”
INTEREST:
Delete the wording *“at such rate as the parties may agree upon in writing or, in the absence

thereof,”

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF CONTRACT:

14.1

ARTICLE 15
15.1

TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR:

At the end of paragraph 14.1.3, change the words “overhead, profit and damages.” to “overhead
and profit.”

Add the following Article 15:

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS:
POLICIES OF EMPLOYMENT:

00800 - 11



15.1.1

15.2
15.2.1

15.2.2

15.2.3

15.2.4

The Contractor and all tiers of Subcontractors and suppliers shall not untawfully discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national
origin, or age. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, and to place in solicitations for employees, notices setting forth
policies of non-discrimination.

MINIMUM WAGE RATES:
Wage rates shall comply with 13-4-11 New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 Compilation, as
determined by the State Labor and Industrial Commission.

One copy of each certified weekly payroll shall be made available to the New Mexico State Labor
and Industries Commissions, and the Owner, by the Contractor and each Subcontractor, no more
than five working days after each payroll period upon request. Such payrolls shall depict the
decision number for this project and the county in which the work is being performed. The
Contractor shall post the scale of wages to be paid in a prominent and easily accessible place at the
Jjob site.

The Contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers employed on the site of the project,
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent unlawful deduction or
rebate on any account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment, computed at wage rates not
less than those stated in the advertised specifications.

In the event it is found by the State Labor Commission, that any laborer or mechanic employed by
the Contractor or Subcontractor on the site of a project covered by the contract has been or is
being paid, as a result of willful violation, a rate of wages less than the rate of wages required by
the contract, Owner may, by written notice to the Contractor and his Subcontractor (if the violation
involves a subcontractor) terminate their right to proceed with the work, or such part of the work as
to which there has been a willful failure to pay the required wages and Owner may prosecute the
work to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Contractor and Contractor’s sureties shall be
liable for any excess cost occasioned thereby. Any party receiving notice of termination of his
Contract or subcontract under the provisions of this section may appeal the finding to the State
Labor Commissioner as provided in the Public Works Minimum Wage Act.

END OF SECTION

00800 - 12



J. F MADDOX FOUNDATION

220 West Broadway, Suite 200
Post Office Box 2588

Hobbs, New Mexico 88241-2588
Phone: (505) 393-6338

Fax: {505) 397-7266
www.jfmaddox.org

May 4, 2004

Steve McCleery, President

New Mexico Junior College
5317 North Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

Dear Steve:

Attached is a draft Grant Contract for the Western Heritage Museum grant. I believe you
will find that this Grant Contract to be highly consistent with the bulleted list of terms we
previously discussed.

However, I thought it would be useful for you to personally review this document. Also,
it would make sense to have the College’s counsel review the Grant Contract before we
prepare execution copies for your presentation to the College’s Board of Trustees.

You will note that Exhibit II is not included in the attached material. I believe that the
College should have access to either material that might directly serve this purpose or that
might be useful in constructing an exhibit. Your guidance in this regard would be
appreciated.

Please let me know if you have questions or concerns regarding this document.
Sincerely,

/e

Robert J. Reid
Executive Director

Enclosure (i)
cc: file



GRANT CONTRACT ﬁﬁ ﬁi :

PARTIES

This Grant Contract, hereinafter referred to as the “Contract”, is entered into
between J. F Maddox Foundation, 220 W. Broadway, Suite 200, Hobbs, New Mexico
88240, a New Mexico non-profit corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “Foundation”,
and New Mexico Junior College, 5317 North Lovington Highway, Hobbs, New Mexico
88240, a New Mexico state community college, hereinafter referred to as “Grantee”,

subject to the terms and conditions set forth below.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Grantee has supported and operated the Lea County Cowboy Hall of
Fame and Western Heritage Center, on its campus, since 1978 and desires to build a new
facility to expand the Cowboy Hall of Fame and Western Heritage Center into a more
comprehensive museum facility, hereinafter referred to as the “New Museum”, on its

campus,

WHEREAS, Grantee has developed construction plans, received approximately
$3,250,000 from the State of New Mexico, and committed at least another $500,000 of its

own funds for the construction of the New Museum;

WHEREAS, Grantee’s Board of Trustees is committed to authorizing an
appropriate level of funding for both the construction and ongoing annual operating

expenses of the New Museum;



Grant #2001307
Page 2 of 10
March 8, 2004

WHEREAS, Grantee’s Board of Trustees and President requested a grant from
the Foundation for $1,350,000 to partially fund the completion of the construction of the

New Museum,;

WHEREAS, Grantee’s Board of Trustees is committed to building the New
Museurn which shall contain no less than all of the design and features described and
illustrated in Grantee’s request to the Foundation (Exhibit I contains illustrations and
descriptions of the design and features of the New Museum, which were included in
Grantee’s request), subject to the Foundation’s commitment to provide a $1,350,000

grant for this purpose;

WHEREAS, Grantee’s Board of Trustees has committed to fund, from Grantee’s
own funds, any costs above those committed by all other sources as may be required to

complete the construction of the New Museum,;

WHEREAS, Grantee and the Foundation believe that the New Museum, as
proposed by Grantee, represents considerable value for the residents of Lea County and

surrounding communities;

WHEREAS, Grantee’s Board of Trustees and President have formally approved

the terms and conditions of this Contract; and



Grant #2001307
Page 3 of 10
March 8, 2004
WHEREAS, the Foundation has approved a grant for $1,350,000, subject to the

terms and provisions of this Contract, to Grantee to assist in funding the construction of

the New Museum.

It is hereby agreed by the Grantee and the Foundation as follows:

GRANT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS
1. The amount of this Grant shall be $1,350,000. The funds from this Grant shall be
made available to Grantee after all other sources of funding, including those funds
provided by Grantee, have been expended. Grantee will provide to the
Foundation, within 90 days of the execution of this Contract, an estimate of the
times and amounts in which the funds from this Grant will be needed. Thereafter,
and through the period of construction, Grantee will provide the Foundation, no
less than quarterly, written reports, which update Grantee’s estimated timing of
funds needed from this Grant. All requests for funds from this Grant shall be

made in writing and with at least 30 days advance notice.

2. Grantee has informed the Foundation that it intends to recruit and employ a
professional museum curator as soon as possible, contingent upon the execution
of this Contract. Grantee acknowledges that the success of the New Museum is,
to a large extent, dependent upon the timely employment, by Grantee, of a
qualified, experienced professional curator. Grantee, therefore, agrees to secure

and utilize appropriate expertise to initiate a search for an appropriately qualified



Grant #2001307

Page 4 of 10

March 8, 2004
curator upon execution of this Contract. Once a qualified candidate is identified,
Grantee agrees that the museum curator position will be occupied as soon as
possible, preferably before the start of construction of the New Museum. Grantee

agrees to, at its own expense, continuously maintain a professional curator to

manage and promote the New Museum and its programs,

3. Grantee must begin construction of the New Museum no later than December 31,
2004. Furthermore, facility and exhibit construction must be complete and ready
for occupancy no later than January 31, 2006. The Foundation’s commitment
herein becomes null and void if the New Museum (facility and all planned
exhibits) is not fully completed and operational by January 31, 2006. Under such
circumstance, all obligations of the Foundation hereunder will terminate. Should
the Foundation’s obligations hereunder terminate, Grantee shall not be required to
refund, to the Foundation, any funds from this Grant, which have already been

provided to Grantee by the Foundation.

4. Grantee agrees to build the New Museum and completely outfit the New Museum
with exhibits, equipment, furnishings, and landscaped grounds in a manner, which
is substantially consistent with the description contained in Exhibit II

**¥%k NMJIC to provide materials to serve as Exhibit II**%**



Grant #2001307
Page 5 of 10
March 8, 2004
5. Grantee agrees to assume full financial responsibility for any capital expenditures

incurred with this project (i.e., construction, exhibits, furniture, equipment,

signage), which exceed the funds raised from other sources, including this Grant.

6. Upon the completion of construction of the New Museum, Grantee agrees to
provide an ongoing financial subsidy for the effective operation of the New
Museum in an amount of not less than $250,000 annually, which shall be in
excess of any revenues generated by the New Museumn, hereinafter referred to as
the “Base Annual Subsidy.” The Base Annual Subsidy shall be applied to direct
operating expenses of the New Museum and not be offset by allocations of
organizational overhead expense. Each year, immediately following the approval
of Grantee’s operating budget, Grantee shall provide to the Foundation, written
evidence of recommitment by its Board of Trustees to the Base Annual Subsidy.
Such evidence of recommitment shall be provided in the form of a resolution

adopted by Grantee’s Board of Trustees.

7. In addition to the Base Annual Subsidy, Grantee commits to maintain the New
Museum facilities to a standard at least equal to the maintenance standard
applicable to Grantee’s other facilities. This is intended to include, but not be
limited to, preventative maintenance, repairs, replacement, and/or upgrading of

facilities, exhibits, equipment, furnishings, and grounds.



Grant #2001307
Page 6 of 10
March 8, 2004

8.

10.

Grantee acknowledges that the Foundation will not consider requests for ongoing

operational and/or subsequent capital support for the New Museum.

Grantee agrees to implement the recommendations of its museum consultant,
Southwest Museum Services, in planning the operations and promotion of the
New Museum. This shall include, but not be limited to, the establishment of an
advisory committee, with a majority of members who are not employees of
Grantee, to provide oversight and input of the operations and promotion of the

New Museum.

During the period of construction of the New Museum, Grantee agrees to provide
the Foundation with written reports, on a monthly basis, with respect to the
progress of construction, the status of staffing the facility including the activities
of the curator, Grantee’s compliance with the terms of this Contract, and any
other material facts and/or developments regarding the New Museum. Thereafter,
and for a period of not less than 10 years following the completion of the New
Museum, for each academic year, Grantee agrees to provide the Foundation with

a comprehensive annual report including, but not limited to, the following:

e The number of museum visitors (with sufficient demographic analysis to
properly evaluate how the New Museum is being utilized).

s Plans to achieve increased utilization of the New Museum.



Grant #2001307
Page 7 of 10
March 8, 2004

o The number of theatre showings with average show attendance per
category of showing.

o Status of staffing of the New Museum including the continuous
employment of a qualified curator.

¢ Listing of significant accomplishments/challenges.

¢ Report of expenditures.

e The latest operating budget.

o Plans for improving and/or expanding the New Museum.

e Updated list of the members of the advisory committee of the New
Museum.

e Other information as may be requested by the Foundation in order to
evaluate the effectiveness of its investment in the New Museum.

Annual comprehensive reports shall be due to the Foundation by no later than
September 30 of each year and shall cover activities through the immediate past
academic year, as well as address subsequent events of consequence. The first
annual report shall be submitted to the Foundation by no later than September 30,

2006.

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. Grantee agrees to notify the Foundation immediately, in writing, if (a) Grantee’s
federal tax-exempt status is revoked or altered; (b) Grantee has reasonable
grounds to believe that its tax-exempt status may be revoked or altered; or, (c)

Grantee has reason to believe that these grant monies cannot be or continue to be



Grant #2001307
Page 8 of 10
March 8, 2004

expended for the specified purpose. In the event that Grantee loses its tax-exempt
status before all funds under this grant are dispensed, this Contract will be
considered null and void and all obligations of the Foundation hereunder will

terminate.

2. Grantee certifies that the instant grant will not jeopardize Grantee’s status as not a

private foundation under Section 509 of the Internal Revenue Code.

3. Grantee will cooperate with the Foundation in supplying additional information or
in complying with any procedures that might be required by any governmental
agency in order for the Foundation to establish the fact that it has observed all
requirements of the law with respect to this grant. Grantee specifically agrees that
no part of the funds received from this grant will be used to carry on propaganda,
influence legislation, influence the outcome of any specific public election, or

carry on, directly or indirectly, any voter registration drive.

4. Grantee shall not assign this Contract or any payment due or to become due under

this Contract without the prior, express, and written consent of the Foundation.

5. The obligations of the Foundation under this Contract shall terminate, at the
option of the Foundation, if Grantee: (a) admits in writing that it is unable to pay
its debts as they become due; (b) applies for or agrees to the appointment of a

receiver or trustee in liquidation of itself or any of its properties; (c) makes a



Grant #2001307

Page 9 of 10

March 8, 2004
general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) files a voluntary petition in
bankruptcy or a petition seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors
under any bankruptcy law; (e) is a party against whom a petition under any
bankruptcy law is filed and admits the material allegations in such petition filed

against it; or (f) is adjudicated as bankrupt under any bankruptcy law.

6. This Contract may only be amended by mutual written consent of the Foundation

and Grantee.

7. If any clause or provision of the Contract is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable
under present or future laws, the remainder of this Contract shall not be affected
thereby, and in lieu of each clause or provision of this Contract which is illegal,
invalid, or unenforceable, there shall be added as a part of this Contract a clause
or provision as nearly identical to the said clause or provision as may be legal,

valid, or enforceable.

8. This Contract embodies the entire agreement of the parties, and no statements,
promises, or inducements made by either party or agent of either party that are not
contained in this written Contract shall be valid or binding. There are no
promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein; and
this Contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations, or
agreements, either verbal or wriiten, between the parties as to the subject matter

of this Contract.



Grant #2001307
Page 10 of 10
March 8, 2004

9. By making this Grant, the Foundation assumes no responsibility for any injury,
damages, or liability arising out of the Grant or any contract, product, service, or
operations for which the Grant is utilized or intended. By accepting this Grant,
the Grantee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Foundation, its board of
directors, officers, employees, and agents from any liability or claims arising out

of, or related to, the Grant.

Executed on the date(s) set forth below:

J. F MADDOX FOUNDATION NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
By By
Robert J. Reid Lawrence Hanna
Executive Director Chairman, Board of Trustees
Dated Dated
By
Steve McCleery, Ed.D.
President

Dated




Exhibit 1
Page 1 of 13

EXHIBIT 1

[ETEEEITITE]
Gurauogd
EELIRETL R

EXLTSENIT RN

WITEqRg L] )
* _ . S3ATIANISES WNI3ISNIW n_-mmg._,l_n_-jﬂm

a u.__ Pt g 4|._,\:\..
.
y G

£q pasedasd

121U9)) 9FCILIOL UIDISIM 2
awe,] JO [[eH A0gmo)) A1uno)) va] ay L
10 Ur|d MaN V



Exhibit 1
Page 2 of 13

.._..:_Q.H__cueuz-u_u_a:ﬁm-_ﬁ._s_E:,Esuz_::uE::Ew:ch_.:ﬁf_:xoEoc__s.\?_r_c_ug::.tfﬁ_xu_nuo._m:_:uxu %
uv 10§ saptaosd uepd mau atp ruonippe up ‘ueid ruiduo ayl jo aStuol) pur 2Rds AY) SUIRIAL OS[E 3L Ing ‘Suipjing
WNasnw paugisap-A|ewBo ay) uey) NS 19j|ews ©ao) sapiaosd ueid si ] 1aua) aSuiaH wdisap pue suie.]
JO [[BH Ajuno)) B3] Yl J0) SAQIGXD pue SUIp|INg mau Ayl po1adpngas pur pamnsyuonal 2ArY UOISHOH JO $31A19S
WA 1samyInog pur anbionbngy jo winegqeggoLaAsNaC 0391100 Jotunf 0d1xajA MON Jo 1sanbaa ayi iy

I01UQ)) OB RIS ULIISOM X
owed jo [[BH A0gmo)) A1uno)) vo] oy
10}
uejd MoN V



) ; : u .
— AR (NN 1a3pngg 1waloag (o paaalong
%
e (00000 0%) (UL [PINSN0OT "Seas (] 1adied) semay) Jo 1no gsiurg
s o 00000 000'T JMNOT FUIPUNG dANTULIA | Y
RS PAAN o Sutpun. aumn)
Ll o.
ele 107y along oy

HOHD "DHM Jo 10 ystut]

LWnasny
S URIP(IL) (M pajeIFoiut 101ua7) aivILIoH wiaisap tidasua)) Ajiuey

SANRY UI-[Iny auny] Jo [JeH Aogme]) - @
SunyS jrmads pue uaais pur (suowalord taeay [, saponfaug
0S1°6L6 2a8png nquyxg o

oUsTlt eoigng 13aforg

{(09'Lei THOTAI0TOD JUT A ROt [0 Hat| 01 WROg/SIaIe suipjig - g
9¢6'C8 SVPYRY

e sunued tsaap -
10audA duois pue supurd poe Suland pmAune)
0O0'00T (AouaBunuon 956 sapnjout 1502} :pamdunca pue Suideaspue] D
SHYQIYXSINY DALINL ) {Pral wood a8iT] du0 MON
ey Jo (rH Aogaon oy pojfey Ajsnoladad raae ur paeao] moN - -
[%9° 160 (AOUDTUNUOD )¢ SIPRIIUL JSOI) LU IFVILIIH WINSIM '€

(R0z'se) Arapeyydggo) o1 paaow auey jo fey fogmod -
YSIUL) A1 () KPR [ING SIASL ALY ],
paysiuy Lwopes Arodwag,
PAsLUL N0
paystul Agqo -
) (AouaBunuon ¢ sOpniduL 1s03) Fwppng el v

.

0%

o

8

&~
(2]

$1507) 2[GRUOd ] JO TUAUITIS

101U27) 28RO WIDISOM 29 awiey JO [[eH Aogmo)) Aluno) ea
Suipjing paIngyuoday oyl 0] 195pNY pasIAdY



Exhibit 1
Page 4 of 13
3

TUTIS [RULIUIW R YIM paumuLew
pue pauado 3G 01 WS Ay sMoje
AgQorT a1 1o uoHRIMSYU0d dY

"SILY) (UONEINPI § WNISNIA] OY1 O

paiejal swan aseysand 01 s101s14 Mo &
1114 maae doys YIs [ews e pue puey
I ASO[0 ON[12 UT S2IYJO JALENSIUILPE
S WNDSNAF AU SAGIYXD S WNIsny ay)
suunol Jop wonrewiojut aeudordde
YIEmM S101181A sapraoad 1aunos 10yon
JUOTNPLLIOJUL PAIEDO] A[[enuad
'ROGmod Suy|Tl uaaup-1oinduwod
POZIS-JJ1| PIAMUNUR PUT PWEIOLP
uoSemyanyd v Juumesj soadamuad v
sapnjom 129y arenbs gz’ unyl adow
Suisidwod oprio) pue £4gqo 2y L

I L, OIPIA LIS
-apia e pur ‘Krofen sugiyxg Avtodura], ¢ vasw 98rio1g puw Sutaaoay “uam doys 1J10) *SA01 JO WNISNY
aweyg jo firH Logmo)) a1 ‘AqqorT a1 Joj aoeds atseq a1 sapraoad Fuipjing unepy pamIyuodas ay), @

"(*KoudBunu0d 9,¢ $apNIdULISOD) ORTCRE S 1 Suip[ing ay) jo uondod

SIY 10 193 PNng UOTONNSUOD FUIPJING 94 ], "SHAIYXD dAd02) 01 Apras ‘Kiajen) Kesodwa 11

put 25e101§ I9ILIY |, ‘Bale 90JQ ‘AGQoT paystuy oy sapnjaur JuIp(Ing ULy oy,
Suip[ing uiepy

[re1aq 195png

AN NN RN RN EEREERE N EEENEENEEEEEEEREERREERER



Exhibit 1
Page 5 of 13

SIIMPUT ()G AMPOLULLIOINT ) PouBISap aq
(11w A1af|e0) Dy 1, dwiey Jo JRH 9Y) 01UL PAISNPUL UG DARY {0 A[IURLNT “SUIZIHD I8dUL S JO $aA1] A1 YInoa
OO1XJA MIN LIISRIYINOS JO L101S dNDLUN 241 {[2) 01 $IAIDS 3wk JO [JeY JY1 ‘uondnpul Jo Jtak AqQ padueily

TIPM Y OWILIEING 39 []im Jem
PAAIND FUO| ay1 FUO|E $ISTT) 'SIRNINPUL 3Y) JO KIOIS d|GeIruds ayl 1[0 [Jim s1onjie jeuostad pue spaurd ogderd

QANDRINY UNRAYL MY) 01 BUIPEI] JOPLLIOD IPIM YT JO IPIS YINI UO DG |[Im IXIOUOL YIPD JOJ §aSeD HqIYXg

dwey Jo [[eH Aogmo) AQluno)) B9 9y J0J WOy Y] ST JAIIS OS[e |[Im AQQoT dy L



Exhibit 1

Page 6 of 13

e

e = e, S

JasusN SNBSS

ay

I
G

LEL

ey

RIS wnasngy oyl soy Ased aunb maowas pur dmas ngyxa sayew Ls)en
suquyxsg Aetodiua] oy o1 wxau Lauaselpe st tioop dn-jjol 281 8 Aq
1OLIAIXA AU WO PISSIIOR SEAIOOL ML, "OTRI0IS LWNISNA] S [[am ST STqIyxa
su1j2ars Jo) noae daasAumddiys/BUatanar B s $oAIds naUR s ], 109 amnbs
$6R JO Ay adniolg v si L10)10 suqiyxg Aeaodwag, sy o1 uaoelpy

ARIA R SN JRIDADS WNISNA DY) 01 YOR( SIOFISIA FTULIQ [[1Mm

eyl weadord 2[q1xay v 1910 01 WRISNA Y1 smo](e A1a)jed suy ] A1d||rO
snquyxg Aardodwiag dY1 a21ud 01 2wie JO {ITH A0gmoD) 3yl JO SILqIyxa
wauwad 2yl y3noay) pur AsURHUS JINTIY T Ayl ssid 1SN SI01ISIA 1Ryl Ul
[E3P1 51 UOTIEI0] $3f suondasas pur “sTuiladl ‘SIgIyxa Wnasni widl-Loys
SUGIYXD Surjdae) pur Funemol o) 3sn 10} ageims ‘wood asodsndnnw

S WUNISTA] AU JU02DY (14 129) 2aenbs £99°7 jo A1a)eE a31e| sy L

"$1qIY X2 Suiprojun pue Juipeo| 10j aaeds sopiacid eary 93eiolg
waoefpe oy, “suonsunj asn ardnnw Jayjo pue ‘suondasal
‘SIUQIYXD Fuljdaen 10) smoj[e Aaqen suqyxyg Asesodwaj ay



Exhibit 1
Page 7 of 13

iEEuu___.u_

e - .
BN mm_..m Qz:uusxw?

T Mo Lt

I= e

ST ANeUT S J0) JOIUDD B ST PISN ] 0] SO
am1 oY) smope Asspeo stgiyxy Ascrodwag ayn o) Asuadnipe 1021U0AU0 $1] Woeos Sunedw pazis-piu v st AIUNLIUOD L) 9A19S
OS[R [[IM ] W UOLRIIDL Ul |0 JudedojaAdp 41 yim IUsD) UONTIUMLIC S WNISAIA YT ST UONIUNY OS|R ]]1M IIIYL oYL

TWIOOISSID LITWS 1 ST UMIDURY 0111 MO[[T OS] [[1m syUI] 1oindwo) -0apia
[RUOTUDAUOD ST [1dMm s stotudsard uddias-opim 10aload [1im ey wimsAs 0opia e yim paddinba oy (im sa1eay ] a1 uadios
OPLA 1Y~ 1 TULNITA “SYSOP WOOISSR|D PUI $10IS JDIEDLYL ST YI0Y DAIDS 1Y) SITYD Yiia [ ] o) Juneas aptavad [jia 100y, oy

"03PIA UONN]OSAI
-YS1Y UDDIDS-OPIM UE S SLIOISIY PUB [EUOTIEINDPD JO UOTIIDAS PIM B IDJJO [[1M 118U ] YL



Exhibit 1
Page 8 of 13

LUNISTA SUIP| 1D
®
101Ua)) TR WSO *

"SUILITD] 10) JUDLIUGIIALD 10YdL B sapiaold osje ing dords jo Awouoda

J0J SMO| £[U0 10U Wwinasniu ayy Joj 1daduod ayi ul dFuryd Joltw 1Y [ |24 INPE pur udIpyd
ay yioq e Fuwwiesdoad pazijeidads aris 01 WNasuw A3 MO [JIM OSje BAIR Y] seweiolp
SNOLIA 341 ST |[aMm S U0 D1ydedd pue [BUOTIRULIOIUL Y1 WIOL] WIRD[ UED SIERPE Dl Jes
U} W pUE SIANITIDTUT Aarsadul 210jdxa una uaIpjyo alaym aou(d v aq [[1m 12030 Ajrueg
MDU SIUL *JOAR] PIIUD pUR 1NPE QT YIOG UO PAIALO 39 [|1A SHGIUXT “wnasnw Ajiue) ans

U S3W022q JINUID) AFLILDYH WI0ISIA Y1 ‘BRIT AWES Ay 0] SJUDWR]A 35aY) Suluiquiod g
WRISOA] S, UIP]IYD) putt 3ua) a8e1oH wiowsap pauuryd Lsnoiaaad ay1.10) paugisap asom
IRUT SUGIYXI 3Y) JO SIUA[D 1ol 21 Jo BoNRIOdIONUT MO|]R |]iM WOo IR|NTURIAIL S1Y ],

"(A2UDTUNUOD 9, G SOPN[IUL1502) [R9°1S9%
ST UONONISUOD SUIPIING 10] 1500 "SHUGIYXD MOU DAINDAI 0] Apeal 199) alenbs
Q0T'S $apNdUI SUIA\ WNISN S, UDIP[IYD) 79 191U ITLILIDH UIMNSIM YL

SUTAA WINJSNIA S UIP[IYD) 29 JAIU)D) 23RO UIDISOM



Exhibit 1
Page 9 of 13

I 10 pur [ranynouide *utyourl v s uoidos au jo wawdojasap pur vonraojdxa a yum
IBOP SHGIEXD [FUONIPPY 21018 JR1audd pur jooyds ¢ ‘awoy youet £ma ue “nofnp aanund e dp v

ASNOL ToYD(Q) U
TUIPRIDUL ‘SIIAIINNS DALDRIANUT JO SIS 1 ydnoag Kjuewnd “pue

| 243 im ATINNS § purjum pleaay SUQIYXD 12430
JPap Buizeld jo apppiw ayi ut dn dod pue _jauun,, Fop autead v I URd uaIp[YD "pury Ay o1 a1y jo diysuonear

anbiun o osuas 01 UISG {[1m SIONSIA DJIPlIMm s, uoISar ay) jo vwrso1p Suneutase v o1 sSuiy Suiay st o)
woly jsied 38I2ALP pur Your § UoIFa1 Y1 Jo ySnoIyi-y(em v souaLiadxa j1m 126D SBMLIOH WIANSaA, 242 OF SIONSIA

SHAIYXD JANOTINUI JO SIL1DS B YTNOIY) 0JIXIA MIN UIISEIYINOS JO K101y
Sunioxs pue you ay 1axd1aiul (i WNasn S.UIP[IYD 29 JOIUDD AFLILIGH INSIA PAUIQUIOD 9 ]



Exhibit 1
Page 10 of 13

21 urpd anbiun s uorSas ay
| Merdorddy “ram siyy uy panqiyxa 39 ura swoy
3ar| s, Wwnasnin ay |, SANATOR J00PINO Jo A1010RA T
900G 10y Ja)ays apraoid Jim oonsod YL eaae Ayanoe sole
SALINUED PIRALINGD 241 *$)qiyxa Jouaiu) ay o1 Knwirxoad

Jo uonwmaidiau 10y Lnunuoddo ap1aoxd im Sugdrospur
A0 pue $FU Fuifup Yol [} SI0 ST ¢ons “s1avjiue 3
180U |1a peAumoy) ay) pue sjuaa

W e se {[am
ST 12811 ol A1opjes v se

35019 811 Jo asnroag

"WINISN A
SIE Jeq s1vy0ue Juniqiyxs Joj 2oerd e sapiaoid Os[2 [ "Sunmas

100pIno 95e)s 01 wnasnpy ay) MOJTE 1M pIeAlmo) sandeae oy

Y1 apisul aq 01 afIe) 0O
QANDLIME UE UT suonouny

suidesspue pue pieduno)



o)
~—
Y
- O
P~
o i
sl
o— Q P 5
= o . ¥ v
x o ! ol
L e . &R &
s s :
”.WM %..:h. ! e
e ¥ .,
1ol
¥
P r .n_.

uewO} 9| (g STH W.m...ﬂ_
6661

0S1°6L6%

0S1°6t¢Y

000°C8Z$

000°6¢5

000'06%

108png siqiyxg jeio],

uotiejjeisuy pur ‘Suiddiys “Funysy
“Honeatgey oprysur o) ‘Suim (inos 011 1Y 01 pamngyuodal
24 OF SNQIYXD Wnasn g s, uaipiyDeseap UIDISIA

uoueyeasut ‘Sutddiys *Junydy
‘uoneaLgey Fuipnjour ‘Kemyjey woy pue Aqqoy 10§
PAINT U001 2 01 SUGIYXD Ay Jo j|eH Aogmo)

cwelop uofemyanys
put £0gmod patewiue apnjou o) HQIyxg £qqor

(saysiuy ooy 1o ‘sJosu ‘Suneas SPOOU 0T S20p)

UDIINI] $T X 1) T1 “BunySy wool ‘wansks punos
YowegAeid (enFip pue uonaafold 0apiA usaog apip

‘Butmol[og ay jo

HONE][BISUT pue uonannsuod ‘usisep-ar oy sapndul 193png 11qIyxg oy

198png siquyxg



Exhibit 1
Page 12 of 13

th ity
T8TH01°6% Surpuny 109fo1q jrio], paroalolyg
ooor §J JfINN Aq papiaoad
WAUNTA] [EDNSNOO *SIEdS (] “10dUed) 10)eay) Jo N0 ySIuL]
000'000°Z$ 32IN0G FUIpUN{ ANCUIIY
cETHrIeS Suipunyg wauny)
CSTHOICS 180D 102loid w10,
0sT'6L6 § 180D NQIYXY
AURYAR S 1500 Juip[ing moy,

guipuny posodoid pue Arewwng 199(01g



o
i
-6
o 269°69Z$ [ruonedg pawrwnsy vo],
0
= o . N
S8 PROEI - 89 E® TI0L MIEs WqNXSWOCISSTS  §
FIL6 Q0'¢ a) HLYE Wwooasseponeay ] §
LGNNI = doveds ruonannsujg
L8F06TS
Arddus asuruaiuiepy  §
aoueuMUIC  §
Addnsspunoany  §
spunoln  §
sonddns uipoisny - §
weipoisn) §
gunysiesnneg §
Fujooy  §
3uneay  §
aouesnsup  §
000081 1221 aaenbs 686°0T
000° [ dnpunoy| uie|d payms
000'¢ asuadxa 7 sorddng
000°C 281504
00¢ aourysip 3uof - suoydajag,
00s‘c [
005" 1 asuadxa mdo)
A S uoddng - siyouag
896°0C uoddng — sourjeg
$OR%°0T [ZUOISS 30U - Sijauayg
TRLCNS [PUOISSI|0L] - S eg

000°08C — 000°09T
150D [ruonuaad( Ao patewinsyg

IUID) 9TBILIOH UIISOM



EXHIBIT II - NMJC TO PROVIDE



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS #79

Purchase & Installation of Coplers for NM])C

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Date: April 27, 2004
Prepared by: Frank D. Collins
Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD DOCUMENTS

General [Information

On February 4, 2004, a legal notice was sent to the following newspapers requesting sealed
proposals to provide copiers to NM]C:

1) The Hobbs Daily News Sun
2) The Lovington Leader
3) The Roswell Daily Record
The RFP was also posted on the NM]C website.

Two (2) vendors submitted proposals in compliance with the opening date and time. One vendor,
Fingerprint Graphics did not respond to the RFP.

No bidders were present at the opening.

The Business Office and College Communications personnel have evaluated the proposals received
and their recommendation is shown on Page 3.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Evaluation and Recommendations
Board Documents
The following vendors responded to the Request for Proposals #79:

Copies, Inc., Hobbs NM
Benchmark Business Solutions, Lubbock TX

The proposals were evaluated by a selection committee which comprised the following individuals: Sam
Oswald, Dean of Continuing Education/Community Services, Dana Martin, Document Centre Supervisor,
Tim Perry, Director of College Communications, and Frank Collins, Coordinator of Purchasing.

The Administration recommends acceptance of the pricing structure submitted by Benchmark Business
Solutions for $217,982.00. The evaluation chart and cost summary are detailed on Pages 4 through 6.

Source of Funding: 2003/2004 FY Equipment Renewal & Replacement
Account Number: 7-2741-02-200
Total: $217,982.00




Proposal Evaluation Criteria

New Mexico Junior College

Board Documents

Evaluation Summary

Sectlon

Coples Inc.

Benchmark Business

Total Points Assigned

Solutions
Reliabllity / stability of firm 25 25 25
personnel

25

References 25 25

25
Abllity to service NMJC 25 25
Total 99.43 100 100

“ lowest cost proposal divided by the other cost proposal = X; then take X times the 25 points {total

assigned for that section). Calculations are as follows:

“Benchmark: $217,982.00 + $217982.00 = 1 X 25 points = 25 points

*Copies Inc.: $217,982.00 + $23,066.00 = .9772 X 25 points = 24.43 points

Benchmark total points awarded for references: 65 (All 5 references responded)

Benchmark had one reference with a non-networked system.

Copies Inc. total points awarded for references: 57 (All 5 references responded)

Copies Inc. only had one reference with a networked system.




¥Yendors

In our RFP we requested 16 copier/printers for the entire campus. We received bids from
Copies, Inc. and Benchmark.

Equitrac

Both companies offered Equitrac for our billing purposes. Copies, Inc.’s price for the
Equitrac system is higher because we also have to purchase Secure Print ($889.00 per
machine) for each copier/printer to enable the machines to hold the job until the user can
go to the machine and release it. This way no copies are laying around for others to pick
up by mistake. We also have to purchase hardware ($996.00 per machine) to make the
Sharp copiers compatible with the Equitrac system. We will have to purchase a
maintenance agreement on all extra hardware. The cost for the maintenance for the
Equitrac System and all needed hardware is $9,036.00 per year after the first year.

The Xerox copier/printers from Benchmark come equipped with these 2 features at no
extra cost to us. The maintenance is $2,400.00 per year for the Equitrac System.
Installation & Traini

Copies, Inc.’s local staff will provide installation of the networked copier/printers and
train us for no fee. Benchmark will send in a crew to do the installation and training at a
cost of $12,078.00.

References

Copies, Inc. and Benchmark both received good scores from the references. Of the five
references for Copies, Inc. only one company (Maddox Foundation) had a networked
copier. For Benchmark, all companies were networked except Carlsbad Medical.

Cost

The following table shows the cost of the campus copiers, 5 years maintenance for the
copiers, cost of the Equitrac System, and 5 years maintenance on the Equitrac system and
all additional hardware.

Company Copies, Inc. (Sharp) Benchmark (Xerox)

Cost of 16 copiers $115,817.00 $131,044.00
Copier Maintenance for 5 years  $29,125.00 $35,770.00
Equitrac System $41,980.00 $27.090.00
Equitrac Maintenance for 5 years $36,144.00 $12,000.00
Installation & Training 0 $12,078.00

Total Cost for 5 Years $223,066.00 $217,982.00




00°Z86°£)1Z$ = HRWYIUBFISN am J1 SJBIA G Jaro aseysnd JO 1500 €101
00°'990°cZZ$ = "2U] sa1dodsn am )t siesk g JaA0 sseydind Jo 1800 (B0

noL
1503 B84 G €10} 00°ZR6'LLZS= 00°RLOZLS ”.ﬁh_m__ﬂg“ﬁ 22 *’
nl 080" xsoqdos
+ (s=minba) 00°060'684 + (s101do3) 00719908 + (30402} ZyE'yhLS
[
BI8[000 JO] 69 UORR[[EIS0] [E10,
|po'eLo'zL $ $ JoosLony $
Sujujes) g uopeyesy| 00022 3 || 00'0zZ UIN YN
00°'8E9'L =D IN WN
00'059'E 00 0E VN YN ;i I
000.5'9 $ || 00'OE: i WiN '3 W) U0 UORE(EISU]
eNinby Jof (0L
00'rZ1'8L8
00°'060°6E¢ = (#2URLaUTEY = (eaurusjupepy 4 5) | — - L at
44 51 00'000°Z18 + {(094d eseyng dennba} 00°060'228 (00'¥YL-rs + (sopd vseyound | 0V00PT  § | 00906 § 000602 g L L A
oenb3a) 00°086' LY
e BIEMPIEY JO SIUBUIUIRLL [ENULTY
BSUEUSIUIEI 000'ZLS + S1e0A ¢ X 00%'TS Mewydueg Lardoo Jed 00°z628
sousuLUIel OD'FPL'9ES= "SIA ¥ X 00'9E0°68 “2u| seydoD 00FSL'g  § uonms pauoy ebey
sennby praidac Jod 00'LOZS
[PERSa N WAHLNSOY wIDes
0000FZ __ § | 00258 § | aiemyos (1] SBIINET 10] DIEMHOS BIURURIUIEW [ENULY
WIN ViN 002009t 00688 (51) UGROG S5E915) JUAUNDOP BIroes
WiIN wiN DO LEL W LEL'L
00002 G $ [ 00002S__s|O0000E Y0000 € {BuluIEl) § Uonelejsu)) (atueuwp owi uo) seomsosd |
ViIN N 00 826 Z1L Y0 966 SISKIGD g1 K0} pepoal BIEMPIEH
00'068'1Z $[loooee’lz $|O006LEE  § | ODGLEE (1) DENiNDY - BIEMpos Bulunoooy
ECTE]
WIN N o} 28uBy) wiew s ¢ (P ¥RNY UL BIeMPOS Juud
£38]d03 10§ 0L
. 00" Z¥6'rri$
00°FLa'99Ls = (@oURUSUBL
= (soumusqe A ) 00'0LL'SES % oy 00'psL'L  § posza's  § ] oorr0isl $ oULIE'SLE $
+ (92U 08RYUNG) 1Y0'151S 5) 00 ‘szL'6zs +
{s22d #smyaung) 00°L18'S}HL
SIUBULIUNEN 00"0LL'SES= SIA § X 0'¥GL' 2$ wreuDUeg ST, S 1E SN xey 196 100 00
3UBUBILIEW 00'SZL'BZS = SIA G X DO'SZE'SS 0] 364000 LA VA 1vM Liva JISB1PAMEU LON (p1) SauIIEW XBS
ssjdo peiomeN 9
. . Sp— . N o JUSIULAISETG ON
00' Lk $ | 00'0EL s J oovis's §[(ooves's $|ooze9's S |oozoge  § (1) 8107 palEssdQ UIDPAOMIBN
N ) ) o —— . N PR IE TR
00'5Z85% = 00 Lb¥ $ | 00'05€ s J ooeLs1L $ [ oosistL $|00se6’2 s |00SEEL S N~ s
2°b5148 = SUIUOW Z| X 96'¢65S = Adod sad SoLLg" | syluow 2y X Zpcgps = Adod W 2 hccghu.ccm..___ﬁ_ﬂow =T o__“
D seuryaew 94 11¢ Jo} Ypuow sed serdod (Bl see'es | sod sop @ seuorwi gL e | 000627 § | 006Kt § || 000E'SE Sloovi's $|o0000% $)o000ZS9  § (<) S1a1do7) passomaN
0} Juow sed sa)doo LE'ES ...mﬁ__...&._o B3
00PZ0F & | 00952t S 00190'PL $|ooezz'e $| 0056599 § |00GEEL  § (6} csandog) pawOMIBN
103 1500 1503 1500 SUCREIYIIS popromGen|
X0I8Y, [ 31 Jeekiod | Jeeksed
Mewyoueg *ou) seydod Dprwiysueg) | (-ou] seidoD) [T Hurued espd 1210, nunued edug
qurew JuiEN
surUSUIRW S3e0A § UM 1502 (830) S2ueuUiBY pPOURUDILIRY [ SUO{INJOS SSBUISNG Yewysusg ou) soydo) Arrunung uopen|eA3 §# d4d




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS #84

Audit Services

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Date: May 14, 2004
Prepared by: Frank D. Collins
Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD DOCUMENTS

General Information

On April 30, 2004, a legal notice was sent to the following newspapers requesting sealed
proposals for audit services:

1) Hobbs Daily News Sun
2} Albuquerque Journal
3} Las Cruces News Sun
The RFP was also posted on the NM]C website.
Three proposals were submitted in compliance with the opening date and time.

The proposers were not present at the opening.

The Business Office Evaluation Committee has evaluated the proposals received and their
recommendation Is shown on Page 3.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Evaluation and Recommendations
Board Documents
The audit firms responding to the RFP were:

Patillo, Brown & Hill, L.L.P., Albuguerque NM

Accounting & Consulting Group, LLP, Clovis NM
Johnson, Miller & Co., Hobbs NM

The proposals were evaluated by an evaluation committee, comprised of Dan Hardin, Vice President
of Finance, Jennifer Jordon, Executive Director of NMJC Foundation, and Frank Collins,
Coordinator of Purchasing. See Pages 7 through 9 for the Evaluation Criteria Summary.

The Administration recommends acceptance of the professional services of Johnson, Miller &t Co.
for audit services for the 2003/2004 fiscal year at an annual cost of $36,630. The college may opt
to renew the contract annually for up to two additional years. The total multi-year cost is
$114,720.

Source of Funding: FY 2004/2005 External Audit Fees

Account Number: 11000_102571257131
Amount: $36,630,00

Points Summary:
Patillo, Brown &t Hill, L.L.P. — 69

Accounting & Consulting Group, LLP - 85

Johnson, Miller & Co. - 88




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

SPECIFICATIONS

. SERVICES — New Mexico Junior College is soliciting Requests for Proposals (RFPs) to select

an Independent Public Accountant (IPA) to conduct the financial audit of the College for
fiscal year 2004-2005. The financial audit shall comprise the entire operations of New
Mexico Junior College, including but not limited to: 2004 990T exempt organization
business income tax retumn, a federal single audit, and consultation services for the
implementation of GASB 39 and SAS 99. The College may opt to renew the contract on a
year-by-year basis for up to two additional years. Such renewal, if granted, shall be
contingent upon the mutual consent of both parties and sufficient appropriations and
authorizations being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this
contract.

. PROFESSIONAL REQUIREMENT - In order to submita proposal, IPAs must be currently

licensed and In good standing with the New Mexico State Board of Public Accountancy and
appear on the New Mexico State Auditor’s approved i sting of IPAs for performing public
audits.

. SCOPE — The proposing IPA is independently responsible for determining the nature, scope,

and depth of the audit services to be performed before submitting a proposal. IPAs may
request to physically inspect sample documents maintained by the NMJC Business Office in
this assessment.

. AUDIT CONTRACT - Thesuccessful IPA shall be required to execute the official State of

New Mexico Audit contract issued through the State Auditor’s Office (s ample copy
attached), the terms of which shall become an integral part of the requirements of this
proposal.

. AUTHORITIES - The audit shall be conducted by the IPA as per all the requirements of

Audit Rule 2.2.2 NMAC dated March 30, 2004 titled “Requirements for Con tracting and
Conducting Audits of Agencies” (copy Included) and all other authorities relative to higher
education and New Mexico local public bodies.

. AUDIT REPORT DEADLINE - The final deadline for submitting the audit report to the

State Auditor’s Office is N ovember 15, 2004.

. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA - The IPA shall be evaluated on the basis of the

criteria set forth in 2.2.2 NMAC Audit Rule Appendix B (See pages 84 and 85). The IPA
should submit sufficiently detailed information in his/her proposal to demonstrate
competency or compliance as enumerated in the Audit Proposal Evaluation Criteria in
Section A of this RFP #84.

. AUDIT REPORT - The IPA shall submit twenty (20} original audit reports to NMJC on or

before the audit report due date. The IPA s responsible for typing, reproduction and
assembly of the reports.

. COST - The cost of services shall be evaluated according to the weighing method outlined
in Part Two of the Evaluation Form only for the top three candidates from Part One. IPAs
should complete the Bid Price Form, breaking down the cost by category and estimated
hours of completion. Gross receipt tax should be excluded.




10. MATERIALS TO BE SUBMITTED — There are materials that shall be submitted by the IPAs
as part of the RFP process. They are as follows:

% NM]C Bid Price Form (copy attached in Section A).

% B. Firm Profile that addresses in detail all the evaluation points as described in the
State Auditor’s Instructions for Completing Agency Audit Contract Proposal
Evaluation Form (instructions attached in Section A).

< Firm’s most recent peer review.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

AUDIT PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA

SECTION A

The following Instructions have been issued by the State Auditor’s Office to agencie s for the
purposes of evaluating the IPA’s Propos al.

Please submit sufficiently detailed information with your proposal that addresses each of the points
listed in order for your proposal to be properly evaluated.

Firms are required to provide a complete copy of their most recent peer review.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Instructions for Completing Agency Audit Contract Proposal Evaluation Form

Part One

The Agency evaluation team is to complete this form for each Audit Firm proposal. If you are
evaluating the second or third year of a multi-year proposal, complete only Part Two of the
Evaluation Form.

1. Complete top portion of this form by entering:

1} The name of your agency;

2) The name and phone number of the contact person in your Agency;
3) The name of the Audit Firm (“Firm”) you are evaluati ng; and

4) The date you are completing this form.

Section 1 Capability of Firm

A. Firm resources to perform the type and size of audit required.

1) Enter the number of staff the Firm proposed to work on your Agency audit.

2) Enter the total number of hours the Firm proposed to work on your Agency audit.
3) Enter the total number of hours the Firm proposed to work on your Agency audit

4) Enter points for sufficiency and reasonableness of proposed Firm staffing and hours.

B. The Firm meets independence standards to perform your audit

1} Enter points for the Firm’s personal or organizat ional independence. The Agency should
ask the Firm to stipulate work performed for the Agency during the last 3 years and to
mention any relationships or situations that might be viewed as a potential or actual
conflict of interest. In addition, the Agency should consider how others outside the Agency
might view relationships where the Firm provides both audit and management services.

C. Quality Control Reviews
C.1 Peer review results

a) Obtain a copy of the most recent peer review (must have been performed within the most
recent three years).

b) Enter the type of opinion received.
¢) Enter points for the opinion received and review results.

C.2) State Auditor review results — To be provided at alater date.

C.3) Reference checks and prior experience

a) Enter points for results of reference checks or your Agency’s prior experience with the Firm.
Reference checks should include past engagements of similar agencies and of key audit team
members. Prior experience could include reviewing the previous evaluation form and determining
that the Firm met proposed goals and used proposed staff.




C.4) Timeliness — To be provided at a later date.
D. Organization and completeness of proposal or bid

a) Enter points for overall responsiveness of the proposal or bid and completeness in following
specifications.

Section 1 Total — Add up and enter the total number of points awarded for Section 1.

Section Il Work Requirements & Technical Approach

A) Knowledge of audit objectives, agency needs and product to be delivered

1) Enter points for indication the Firm understands the scope of work to be done,
knowledge of objectives, and agency needs.

B) Sound technical plan and realistic estimate of time
1} Enter the proposed start date
2) Enter the proposed end date
3} Enter points for the Firm’s development of a realistic pl an and time estimates to
complete major segments of the audit: planning; interim fieldwork; fieldwork; and
reporting.

C)  Plans for using auditee staff; including internal auditors
1) Enter points for the Firm’s development of a realistic plan and time estimates for using
Agency staff, including using the work internal auditors.
D} Multi-year proposals
1) Enter points for the Firm’s development of a realistic a pproach for planning and
conducting the audits of subsequent years.
Section Il Total — Add up and enter the total number of points awarded for Section Il.

Section 11l Technical Experience

A) Enter points for On-site manager’s governmental audit experience
1) Enter the name of the proposed on-site manager

B) Enter points for the Team’s audit experience for the following:
1) Specialization In your type of agency (e.g. state agencies, schools, hospitals, counties,
clties, etc.)
2) GASB 34 and 35 Experience
3) Experience with Housing Authorities
4) Experience with Charter Schools

C) Enter points for attendance at continuing professional education seminars or meetings on
auditing, accounting, and regulations directly related to state and local government audits
and the agency.




Section 1ll Total — Add up and enter the total number of points awarded for Section ll.

Section IV Firm Strengths or Weaknesses

1) Specify any other firm strengths and weaknesses.

2) Enter points for any other Firm strengths, offset by points deducted for weaknesses as
noted in the Firm’s proposa | or bid. Indicate any other factors based on experience that
may be relevant to evaluation of this Firm.

Section IV Total - Add up and enter the total number of points awarded for Section IV.

Add up and enter the total number of points awarded for all sections.

Repeat all steps for all proposals or bids received.

Determine the top three proposals with the highest scores for Part One.

Evaluate cost separately for the top THREE CHOICES.

Continue with Part Two of the Evaluation Form and add parts ONE and TWO in making your
FINAL recommendations.




Name of Firm: Johnson, Miller & Company
Contact Name: David Wheat

Address: 225 E. Bender

Hobbs, NM 88240

Telephone: 505-393-2171

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BID PRICE FORM

RFP#84 - AUDIT SERVICES

2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 Combined
Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Cost

Financial Statement Audit 315 $19,090] 315 $20,045 315 $21.050 $60,185
Federal Single Audit 80 $4,850 80 $5,095 80| $5.350 $15,205|
990 Tax Return for Estacado Library Information Network 12 $730 12 $770 12 $810 $2,310
jConsultation services for GASB 39 6 $365 $365
JConsultation services for SAS 99 12 $730 12 $770 12 $810 $2,310
[New Mexico Junior College Foundation®* 199 $10,865 199 $11,410 199 $11,980 $34,255
Other (il applicable, describe in detail below)

TOTAL PROPOSED FEES $36,630 $38,090 $40,000 $114,720

*This is a component unit. It has NOT been audited and will require preliminary test work.




JOHNSON, MILLER & CO.

Certified Public Accountants Habhs, New Mexico

A Professional Corporation Micllownxd, Texas

An Independent Member Of BDO Seldman Alllunce Odessa, Texas
May 12, 2004

Mr. Frank Collins

New Mexico Junior Callege
Office of the Purchasing Agent
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240

We appreciate this opportunity to submit our proposai to you for the audit of the financial statements for the
New Mexico Junior College (the College) for the year ending June 30, 2004 and the New Mexico Junior
College Foundation for the year ending June 30, 2004. All references to "the College” apply to the New
Mexico Junior College Foundalion as well.

As requested in your Request for Proposal (RFP # 84), enclosed is the following information:

A Submittal Requirements
Section |, Capability of the firm
Section Il Work Requirements and Audit Approach
Section 1. Technicai Experience
Section V. Firm's Strengths or Weaknesses
Section V. Fee Proposal
Section VI. Quality Review Report

Johnsan, Miller & Co. would consider the Coliege to be an important client deserving a service team that is
enthusiastic and dedicated to providing not only audit services, but also various other services that could
acdress possible needs and desires to strengthen internai control. We encourage our clients to look upon us
as their business advisors and not just as “"the auditors".

We appreciate the opportunity to present our qualifications and approach lo serve your needs. Please do not
hesitate o call if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

WFW

Robert R. Rivingja. CPA

235 Bast Bender Bivd, « 12O, Drnver 220 ¢ Habibs, Sew Meskeo HE2E
(303 3002171 = Fax (303) 3074301 » WAL IO COND



SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

SECTION | - CAPABILITY OF THE FIRM

A,

The Firm has the resources to perform the type and size of audit required.

We maintain a large library of hardcopy reference material, CD-ROM malerials and internet access
which will be available to us during the audit.

We have resources available from our other area offices in order to meet any scheduling or staffing
needs during the audit or for other accounting concerns that may arise during the year,

We have a consulting agreement that allows us to access resources of the national accounting firm of
BDO Seidman LLP which has a large nationwide governmental audit practice. BDO Seidman
governmental and information system audit specialists would be available for assistance if we were to
encounter any unique circumstances during the engagement or for matters that arise during the year.

Johnson, Miller & Co will provide the following individuals for the audit engagement:

Charles Carlson, CPA, Partner ~ Charles is an Audit Partner with our Odessa audit practice. He
has over twenty-seven years experience in public accounting, including the areas of taxation.
accounting services, consulting, and auditing. He has gained experience as an auditor in many
diverse industries including numerous audits of governmental entities, public schools, not-for-profit
entities, oil and gas, and various other organizations. He has supervised various governmental audits
including several of which have significant grant activity. Charles will be available for supervision and
consulting to assure that the financial statements are in conformity with applicable accounting
standards. He will devote between 5 and 10% of his time to the performance of the contract.

David Wheat, CPA, Audit Manager - David is an Audit Manager with our Hobbs audit practice. He
has over twenty-six years experience in public accounting, including the areas of taxation, accounting
services, consulting, and auditing. He has gained experience as an auditor in many diverse
industries including numerous audits of governmental entities, public schooals, not-for-profit entities,
construction contractors, and various other organizations. He has supervised various governmental
audits including several of which have significant grant activity. David will assist the Supervisor to
assure that the financial statements are in conformity with applicable accounting standards. He will
also assist the Supervisor to assure that audit reports are in accordance with appiicable auditing
standards, and will devote between 25 and 50% of his time to the performance of the contract.

Yeresa Arsiaga, CPA, Supervisor - Teresa is an Audit Supervisor with our Hobbs audit practice.
She has over five years experience in public accounting, including areas of taxation, accounting
services, consulting, and auditing. She has gained e xperience as an auditor in many diverse
industries including numerous audits of governmental entities, higher education, not-for-profit entities,
construction contractors, and various other organizations. Teresa has supervised various
governmental audits including several of which have significant grant activity. She will be responsible
for the documentation and completion of the audit in an effective and efficient manner, and will devote
between 50 and 75% of her time to the performance of the contracl.

Tracy Baten, In-Charge - Tracy is an in-charge accountant with our Hobbs audit practice. She has
over three years experience in public accounting, including areas of taxalion, accounting services,
consulting, and auditing. She has gained experience as an auditor in many diverse industnies
including numerous audits of governmental entities, higher education, not-for-profit entities.
construction contractors, and various other organizations. She will be responsible for the audit
fieldwork and assisting in the compietion of the audit in an effective and efficient manner, and will
devote 100% of her time to the performance of the contract.

Sabrina Ferrales, Staff Accountant - Sabrina is a staff accountant with our Hobbs audit practice.
She has one year experience in public accounting, including areas of taxation, accounting services,
consulting, and auditing. She has gained experience as an auditor in many diverse industries

2




including numerous audits of governmental entities, higher education, not-for-profit entities, and
various other organizations. Sabrina will assist in the audit fieldwork, and will devote between 75 and
100% of her time to the performance of the contract.

The firm meets independence standards to perform your audit.

Johnson, Miller & Co., CPA's are independent with respect to your organization. In addition, Johnson,
Miller & Co. has extensive systems in place to prevent actual and perceaived independence probiems.
Furthermore, we have no knowledge of any potential conflicts of interest that could giverise to aiack
of independence in appearance or fact for the New Mexico Junior College.

Quality Control Raviews

Johnson, Miller & Co. is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA)
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Practice Sector. Members of this organization are
required to undergo, at least every three years, an on-site quality review conducted in conformity with
the standards established by the AICPA. The Firm received its most recent quality control review in
2001. The opinion dated October 18, 2001, was unqualified and a Letter of Comments was issued.
(Copies are attached).

Johnson, Miller & Co. also has implemented a Firm inter-office quality review program. The Firm's
inter-office program is spearheaded by a Director and is comprised of an audit manager or supervisor
from each office. Each office’s completed audits and CAAT systems are subject to review by the
inter-office team, exclusive of the team member who is employed at the respective office.

In looking at the timeliness of prior year audits, Johnson, Miller & Co. has completed all governmental
entity audit contracts by the required due dates. Johnson, Miller & Co. strives to meet or exceed
client-imposed deadlines for their annual audit engagements.

Johnson, Miller & Co. are proud to have served many New Mexico government clients. Please feel
free to contact any of the individual references listed on page 7.

The following are names, phone numbers, and contact persons for three g overnmental a udits
Johnson Miller & Co. performed an audit for last fiscal year:

Roger Hines Steve Massey Jane Hahn

Finance Director County Manager Director of Finance

City of Hobbs Eddy County Hobbs Municipal Schools
Hobbs, NM 88240 Carlsbad, NM 88220 Hobbs, NM 88240

{5085) 397-9235 (505) 887-9511 (505) 433-0100

SECTION Il - WORK REQUIREMENTS AND AUDIT APPROACH

A

Knowledge of audit objectives, agency needs, and product to be delivered.

Our audit techniques are state-of-the-art: innovative, creative, efficient, and continually scrutinized for
time and cost savings opportunities without sacrificing “coverage". Our audit approach focuses on
“critical” areas, those where the greatest risk of material error exists, We do not pursue insignificant
iterns or areas where errors are unlikely to occur or be significant.

Each member of the audit engagement team will be equipped with notebook computers to implement
Computer Assisted Auditing Techniques (CAAT) which will provide the most efficient test sample
selecting audit plan and procedures. The CAAT will include computerized trial balances, analytical
procedures, worksheets, and audit program generation for all audit areas. Other CAAT include
programs and worksheets for evaluating and testing internal controls and information systems, as well
as financial statement footnotes, schedules and tables.



We will conduct the audit in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128 and federal, state and county laws, rules and regulations.
Accordingly, our audit will include such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances to express an opinion on the financial
statements of the College as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004. Qur examination will also be
conducted, as necessary, in accordance with the following:

* Government Auditing Standards issued by the U.S. General Accounting Office (GAQ), revised
June, 2003. Commonly referred to as the “Yellow Book", the guide defines generally accepted
government a uditing s tandards { GAGAS). GAGAS differs in many respects with generally
accepted auditing standards (GAAS) as issued by the AICPA. GAAS are applicable to and
generally accepted for audits conducted to express opinions on the fairness with which an
organization's financial statements present the financial position, results of operations, and cash
flows, i.e., nongovernmental entities. Generally, GAGAS Includes many of the standards required
under GAAS, however also makes various distinctions and requires supplemental standards for
audits of government crganizations.

*  Audits of Federal Financial Assistance to State and Local Government Units issued by the GAO.

* The AICPA industry audit guide, Audits of State and Local Government Units.

» Audits for State and Locai Governments, Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133 and
the Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

¢ The AICPA industry audit guide, Audits of Not-for-Profit Organizations.

2.2.2 NMAC, "Requirements for Contracting and Conducting Audits of Agencies".
¢ Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grant-in-Aid to State and Local Governments.

We believe that the single audit concept provides the broadest audit coverage designed by the
Federal Government in audits conducted in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984. We
anticipate the issuance of the accountants’ report for the organization to be as follows:

¢ Accountants’ report on the fair presentation of the financial s tatements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial statements of the College.

e Accountants' report on internal accounting control that canforms to the guidelines set forth in the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement on Auditing Standards No.
20 "Required Communication of Material Weaknesses in Internal Accounting Control” as well as
the Federal Government guidelines set forth in the Single Audit Act of 1997 and OMB Circular
A-133.

¢ Accountants' report on compliance with the material terms and conditions of the applicable grant
agreements, regulations and laws containing an expression of positive assurance with respect to
items tested and negative assurance for untested items.

Proposal or bid contains a sound technical plan and realistic estimate of time to complete major
segments of the audit; planning, interim feldwork, fieldwork, and reporting.

Johnson, Miller & Co. will utilize specific audit practice aids published by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and other nationally recognized practice aids to ensure alt Generally
Accepted G overnmental A ccounting P rinciples and G enerally A ccepted A uditing Standards are
complied with.

We would begin our planning of the 2004 audit immediately upon notification of being awarded the
contract. Below is a projected schedule of fieldwork:



July Planning and Preliminary Fieldwork

August Complete Audit Fieldwork
September Complete Audit Fieldwork
October Complete Audit Fieldwork
November Complete Report

This time schedule, however, is flexible based on the timing of your needs and work schedule.

. Plans for using the College's Staff, including internal auditors

Johnson, Miller & Co. will utilize the College’s staff to obtain copies of computer files of all fund trial
balances to import into our trial balance audit software. We will also utilize the Department of
Finance's staff to obtain access to records and schedules or explain revisions to certain processing
procedures, exceptions, or departures. Johnson, Miller & Co. takes pride in keeping interruptions to a
minimum, avoiding disruptions to your normal operations. A comprehensive list of items needed will
be supplied to the College upon acceptance of the contract.

If the proposal or bid is for a multi-year contract, approach for planning and conducting the work
efforts in subsequent years

Johnson, Miller & Co. will utilize an audit approach that maximizes resources available and minimizes
duplication of effort. All pertinent information and schedules will be carried forward to keep
subseqguent year requests of the organization’s personnel to a minimum.

SECTION ill - TECHNICAL EXPERIENCE

A,

Government audit experience of on-site manager.

As mentioned previously, our unique audit approach will utilize two on-site managers with the
following experience:

Years of
Governmentail
Name Position Experience
David Wheat, CPA Engagement Manager 26
Teresa Arsiaga, CPA Supervisor 5
Tracy Baten In-Charge 3

Team audit experience

1. Specialization in your type of agency (e.g. not-for-profit agencies, state agencies, schools,
hospitals, counties, cities, efc.).

Johnson, Miller & Co.'s audit experience of the many governmental, not-for-profit agencies
and hospitals we have served are more fully described on page 8.

2. GASB 34 and 35 Experience

GASB 34 and 35 will have a tremendous effect on the audit process, and our firm has
obtained many hours of training on this topic, as well as implementing GASB 34 and 35 in the
prior year for various clients.

We will assist your staff with the listing, classifying, and data input of capitalizable assets and
the related calculations of book value and accumulated depreciation, including the allocation

of depreciation expense to functions.

We will prepare journal entries to record capitalizable assels and depreciation expense for
the year ended June 30, 2004,
5



Johnson, Miller & Co. has been on the forefront of this important issue for our governmental
ciients. We have offered training to our clients through seminars featuring nationaity
recognized speakers since 1996. Qur staff has received in-house training and attended
seminars and courses offered by the State Auditor and others throughout the process of
introduction and passage of GASB 34 and 35.

Our firm has implemented GASB 34 and 35 in the prior year and is currently in the process of
consulting with other governmental clients on the effects and process of implementing these
far reaching pronouncements.

C. Attendance at continuing professional education seminars or meetings on auditing, accounting and
regulations directly related to state and local government audits and the agency.

Johnson, Miller & Co continuaily meet and exceed annual continuing professional education
requirements set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and standards
established by the State of New Mexico Office of the State Auditor. In addition, our firm annually
attends and conducts in-house training in accounting and auditing directly related to not-for-profit and
governmental agencies including the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1998 and ongoing revisions to
OMB A-133.

Johnson, Miller & Co sponsors governmental accounting and auditing courses each year which are
taught by accredited instructors and qualify for continuing education credit in New Mexico. The Firm
requires a minimum of 24 continuing professional education hours every two years in subjects directly
relating to the governmental environment or to government auditing for the individuals responsible for
planning, direction, conducting substantial portions of fieldwork, or reporting on the governmental
audit. These hours are obtained through a combination of Firm sponsored and other professionally
sponsored seminars.

SECTION IV - FIRM STRENGTHS

Background of Firm
ORGANIZATION

Johnson, Miller & Co. is incorporated as a professional corporation under the laws of New Mexico and is
authorized to operate in Texas. We are licensed to practice as certified public accountants by both the Texas
and New Mexico (registration #8058) State Boards of Public Accountancy. We are in good standing with both
Boards and not under any public or private reprimand. A firm profile has been submitted to and accepted by
the New Mexico State Auditor for 2003.

Johnson, Miller & Co. has offices in Hobbs, New Mexico, Midland and Odessa. Texas and collectively employs
approximately eighty professionals and staff,

The following summarizes, by office, the number and type of Firm personnel:

Hobbs Midland ~ Odessa

Partners (Directors) 3 4 3
Managers 2 2 2
Supervisaors 2 3 3
Seniors 6 5 4
Other accountants 8 8 8
Other personnel __4 4 _5

26 _26 5

Although Johnson, Miller & Co. is alocal firm, we are also nationally recognized. Inthe April 5, 1998 issue of
Accounting Today, the firm is recognized as one of the top 34 CPA companies in the country that are "fast,
rnimble, smart and show a propensity for growth”. The publication cites Johnson, Miller & Co as an up-and-

6



coming, “firm to watch". W e are also noted as a technical leader in the accounting profession in the
Southwestern United States. The Firm is listed as the 12th highest ranked firm in "The Southwest's Top 16
Firms" by the Practical Accountant in the April, 2002 issue. In addition, Johnson, Miller & Co.'s Hobbs office is
recognized annually as one of the "Leading Accounting Firms in New Mexico” by the New Mexico Business

Weekly,

Government Clients Served

Johnson, Miller & Co. has experience on governmental audits including:

AGENCY AUDITED

Ector County Independent School District
Habbs Municipal Schools

Midland Independent School District
Ysleta Independent School District
Midland College

College of the Southwest

QOdessa College

Eastern New Mexico University

New Mexico Institute of Mining & Technology
City of Hobbs

City of Albuquerque

City of Denver College

City of Kermit

Housing Authority of the City of Odessa
Crane County

Midland County

Lea County

Crane Memorial Hospital

Jal Hospital District

Midland County Housing Authority
Eddy County

New Mexico Junior College

Roswell Independent School District
City of Eunice

Additional Services

We will perform the following additional services as a part of this contract that are above and beyond RFP
requirements.

1.

Johnsoen, Miller & Co. sponsors governmental accounting and auditing courses each year which
are taught by accredited instructors and qualify for continuing education credit in New Mexico.
Your accounting staff will be invited to attend these courses at no charge to you.

In our Hobbs office we maintain a large library of hardcopy reference material, CO-ROM materials
and internet access which will be available to us during the audit and to you on an ongoing basis.

We have resources available from our other area offices in order to meet any scheduling or
staffing needs during the audit or for other accounting concerns you may have during the year.

We have a consulting agreement that allows us to access resources of the national accounting
firm of BDO Seidman LLP which has a large nationwide governmental audit practice. BDO
Seidman governmental and information system audit specialists would be available for assistance
if we were to encounter any unique circumstances during the engagement or for matters that
arise during the year. .



3. We have resources available from our other area offices in order to meet any scheduling or
staffing needs during the audit or for other accounting concerns you may have during the year.

4. We have a consulting agreement that allows us to access resources of the national accounting
firm of BDO Seidman LLP which has a large nationwide governmental audit practice. BDO
Seidman governmental and information system audit specialists would be available for assistance
if we were to encounter any unique circumstances during the engagement or for matters that
arise during the year.

5. We will be available to you throughout the year for consulting and to answer any questions you
may have.

AGREEMENT AND SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

We agree lo perform the annual fiscal audit for the New Mexico Junior College, New Mexico for the period of
July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004 and the New Mexico Junior College Foundation for the period of July 1,
2003 through June 30, 2004. The undersigned certifies that thers has been no collusion in the preparation of
this proposal. The undersigned certifies that he/she read and understands the request for proposal and all
pertinent documents, and that the Firm and/or person represented accepts these conditions and submits the
proposal in full compliance therewith.

COMPANY__JOHNSON, MILLER & CO. SIGNATURE W ¥4 W

ADDRESS__ P.O. DRAWER 220 NAME (PRINT)__ROBERT R. RIVINQJA
HOBBS, NM 88241 TITLE__PARTNER
TELEPHONE _393-2171 DATE__May 12, 2004

NEW MEXICO RESIDENT BIDDER CERTIFICATE #___F-08058



QUALITY REVIEW REPORT



CONDLEY AND COMPANY L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS an0 CONSULTANTS

993 North Third Street ® P. O, Box 2993 # Abilene, Texas 79604-2993 ® (56775251 @ FAX 9156770006 « E-Mail: condley@eondley.com

October 18 2001

To the Stockholders

Johnson, Miller & Company, P.C.

And the SEC Practice Section Peer Review Committee
2626 John Ben Shepperd Parkway

#A-200

Odessa, Texas 79761-1951

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
Johnson, Miller and Company, P.C. (the firm) in etfect for the year ended June 30, 2001. A
system of quality control encompasses the firm’s organizational structure and the policies
adopted and procedures established to provide it with reasonable assurance of complying with
professional standards. The elements of quality control are described in the Statements on
Quality Control Standards issued by the American Institute of Certitied Public Accountants {the
“AICPA™). The design of the system, and compliance with it, are the responsibilities of the firm.
In addition, the firm has agreed to comply with the membership requirements of the SEC
Practice Section of the AICPA Division for CPA Firms (the Section). Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the design of the system, and the firm’s compliance with that system and
the Section’s membership requirements based on our review.

Our review was conducted in accordance with standards established by the Peer Review
Committee of the Section and included procedures to plan and perform the review that are
summarized in the attached description of the peer review process. OQur review would not
necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system of quality control or all instances of lack of
compliance with it or with the membership requirements of the Section since it was based on
selective tests. Because there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of
quality control, departures from the system may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of
any evaluation of a system of quality control to future periods is subject to the risk that the
systern of quality control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Johnson,
Miller and Company, P.C. in etfect tor the year ended June 30, 2001, has been designed to meet
the requirements of the quality control standards for an accounting and auditing practice
established by the AICPA, and was complied with during the year then ended to provide the firm

AICPA SEC Practica Section & \n [ndersndintly thimnd \dambar +F tha W tladeny Manunsl o Waeliwide Cameioss Thonoiak BEVE fo.,



with reasonable assurance of complying with professional standards. Also, in our opinion, the
firm has complied with the membership requirements of the Section in all material respects.

As is customary in a peer review, we have issued 2 letter under this date that sets forth comments

relating to certain policies and procedures or compliance with them. The matters described in
the letter were not considered to be of sufficient significance to affect the opinion expressed in

this report.
g % MW’ L. P,

Condley and Company, L.L.P.



Ce

CONDLEY AND COMPANY, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS avp CONSULTANTS

993 North Third Street = P, O, Box 2993 = Abilene, Texas 79604-2993 * 915-677-6251 * FAX 915-677-0006 w 2-Mail: condley@condley.cam

October 18 2001
To the Stockholders
Johnson, Miller & Company, P.C.
and the SEC Practice Section Peer Review Committee
2626 John Ben Shepperd Parkway
#A-200

QOdessa, Texas 79761-1951

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice
of Johnson, Miller & Company, P.C. (the firm) in effect for the year ended June 30, 2001,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2001. The matters described below
were not considered to be of sutficient significance to affect the opinion expressed in that
report, which should be read in conjunction with this letter,

Engagemeat Performance

Comment - Generally accepted auditing standards require that management
representation letters be obtained on all financiai statement and periods covered by the
auditors’ report. On several engagements we reviewed, the management letter did not
cover the prior year when comparative financial statements were being reported on.

Recommendation — We tecommend that all engagement stockholders be advised to
inciude consideration of this requirement in their final review before releasing the

auditors’ report.
)
,/Jp-a- GZ%?WM &7&7’, L.L. P

Condley and Company, L.L.P.

ST aubb T Sin | NITT0M NUSNHDE 01:s1 £005-11-934



Invitation to Bid # 949RB

Purchase of A Road Grader

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Date: April 20, 2004
Prepared by: Frank D. Collins
Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD DOCUMENTS

General Information

On April 6, 2004, legal notices were sent out to three newspapers requesting sealed bids
for the purchase of a road grader:

Hobbs Daily News Sun
Albuquerque Journal
Las Cruces News Sun

Bid packets were sent to five potential bidders.

One bidder submitted a bid within the time frame specified by the bid package.
No bidders were present at the opening.

The Business Office and Maintenance Department have evaluated the bid received. Their
recommendation is shown on Page 3.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Evaluation and Recommendations

The bidder responding to Invitation to Bid #949RB was James Cecil Auctioneers of Hobbs NM,

The Administration recommends acceptance of the bid for a road grader from James Cecil

Auctioneers for $16,500.00. The specifications and bid price form may be found on Pages 4 and
5.

Source of Funding: - Maintenance — Major Equipment Account
Account #: 1-2741-15-810
Amount: $12,500.00

Rodeo Team — Athletic Supplies Account
Account #: 2-2347-82-605

Amount:  $ 4,000.00
Total: $16,500.00




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Invitation to Bid #949RB

Specifications & Bid Price Form

New Mexico Junior College contemplates purchasing a road grader for the
maintenance department. New Mexico Junior College reserves the right to reject
any and all bids on any or all item(s).

Type of road grader to be purchased:

Age: 1980 model or newer
Minimum 44 foot blade (PLEASE SEE ATTACHED PAGE FOR FURTHER SPECIFICATIONS)
Lift blade with hydraulic controls
Enclosed cab

Diesel engine

Power steering and brakes

Bidder Name: JAMES CECIL AUCTIONFERS

Year 1980 or newer road grader:
Shipping: FOB destination to New Mexico Junior College Quantity: 1

Indicate year and model 1983 CHAMPION ART FRAME ROAD GRADER $ 16,500.00

TOTAL: $ 16,500.00
SN# 710A-75-19-15906

Have all specificatignhs been met or exceeded?
(Circle one: (ZQ)‘ NO )

If the answer is NO, attach an explanation.

CERTIFICATE OF WORKING CONDITION ATTACHED{YES/ NO (F NOT, EXPLAIN):

(The certificate of working condition must be performed by an independent
source;: not someone from_your firm or company - if the certificate of
working condition is not attached as part of our response and delivered
before the due date, your bid will be considered non-responsive)

DATE OF DELIVERY: __ IMMEDIATELY UPON YOUR REQUEST

The bidder agrees to provide NMJC the road grader as specified and at the price
indicated on this form in gccordance with all terms and conditlons Included in this
invitation to bid.

Bidder signature: Title:  OWNER

Date: 4-19-04




ROAD GRADER SPECIFICATIONS
FOR BID #947

1983 CHAMPION MODEL 710A ROAD GRADER, SN#710A-75-1915906

ENGINE: . 1983 Cummins v1-378 w/throttle controls & fue| system,
air cleaner and radlator installation,

TRANSMISSION: Clark 18,000 Power Shif+ transmisslon w/cluteh and control valve,
Clark 272.7 convertor, Clark 272.7 and 273.5 convertor clrcult,

POWER TRAIN: Drive Shaft upper and lower, wheels and tires, Eéton final drive
assembly, Eaton final drive tandem assembly,

Art Framed Motor Grader w/enclosed cab and compohenfs:

Steering System: Front axle, steering unit and column, steering cylinder
and circultrforward section, leaning whee! cylinder and clrcuit,
articulation joint ang indicator, - > 28 :

Circle Drawbar & 14! Moddboard - Circle and drawbar assembly, circie turn
¢ylinder and circult, cirele turn valve and mount assembly, side shiff
and slide shif+ cylinders and circuits, power +i1+ moldboard and

Blade Lift: Blade 1 1ft and controls, blade |{f+ cylinder and clrecult,

Hydraullcs: Hydraulic pumps, pump driveshaft installations, manifold controls
solenold valve-arflculaflon, manifold valve assembly-dual f|ow hydrau-
Iles, primary hydraulic circuit,

Brakes: Brgke pedal and circul+t lnsfallafion—power brakes, master cylinder and
booster assemb | y-power brakes, wheel brake and cylinder édssembly,
parking brake installation,

Tire Size: 17.5-25 Nylon, 50% op better,
Batteries: Four ney heavy duty batteries.



Invitation to Bid # 951

Materials for the Construction of Horse Stalls

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Date: May 14, 2004
Prepared by: Frank D. Collins
Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD DOCUMENTS

General Information

On May 3, 2004, legal notices were sent out to three newspapers requesting sealed bids for
the purchase of materials for construction of horse stalls:

Hobbs Daily News Sun
Portales New Tribune
Clovis Journal

Bid packets were sent to four potential bidders.

Two bidders submitted a bid within the time frame specified by the bid package.
The bidders were not present at the opening.

The Business Office and Rodeo Athletics have evaluated the bids received. Thelr
recommendation is shown on Page 3.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD DOCUMENTS

Evaluation and Recommendations

The bidders responding to Invitation to Bid #951 were Standard Steel Inc., Odessa TX and Steel
Depot, Hobbs NM.

The Administration recommends acceptance of the bid for materials for the construction of horse
stalls from Steel Depot for $14,489.09. The bid tabulation is shown on Page 4.

Source of Funding: - Supplies and Expense — Rodeo Athletics
Account #: 2-2347-82-605
Amount: $7,244.54

Capital Improvements — BRR —Rodeo Arena
Account #: 9-2729-02-023
Amount: $7,244.55

TOTAL: $14,489.09




08£LL°L1 VLOL
adey pe) SlIC) ¥
8/ Smaids de 050°7
SMJIS RIIUP JIPS 008’9
123 8¥1°L |pued 3 AMYM 82 it LIS 4
133 088 [pued § UM 01 533ys 85
133} 558 |3ued Yy AUUM .6 SIS 845
123 600°Z |2ued 3 AUUM 9.+2 933Yys g
agnes p| ung 33D | 133 000°1
adned ¢ ujng 393 8 13 0Z0'E
JONdd HLONT NOILLdIDS3a ALLLNYND
13318 IVANVYLSE

uopeInge ] Pig suopedydads | 64 Pig 01 uopeALj

3937102 ¥OINNL O MIN




WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLUTION

Diann A. Megert

Diann A. Megert being one of the Staff Members of New Mexico
Junior College, has faithfully served the College for 21 years, and

Diann A. Megert has served as Professor of Data Processing/
Mathematics/AVHS from 1983-1990, and

Diann A, Megert has served as Professor of Computer Science/
Mathematics from 1990-2004, and

Diann A. Megert has served as Instructor for Continuing Education/
Community Service 1995, and

Diann A. Megert has served on various committees at New Mexico
Junior College and in the community, and .

Diann A. Megert has been a devoted, enthusiastic and loyal staff
member at New Mexico Junior College, and

Diann A. Megert as a staff member, has always reflected a favorable
image for New Mexico Junior College, and

Diann A. Megert has elected to retire the 1st day of July, 2004

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Diann A. Megert be declared Professor
Emeritus of New Mexico Junior College with all the rights and privileges pertaining thereto;

ADOPTED THIS 20th day of May, 2004.

ATTEST:

New Mexico Junior College Board Chairman

New Mexica Janior College Board Secrstary




RESOLUTION

Constance M. Robinson

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson being one of the Staff Members of New
Mexico Junior College, has faithfully served the College for 7 years,
and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson has served as Coordinator of Tutoring/
Supplementary Instruction from 2000-2004, and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson has served as Coordinator of Learning
Assistance from 1996-2000, and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson has served on various committees at New
Mexico Junior College and in the community, and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson has been a devoted, enthusiastic and loyal
staff member at New Mexico Junior College, and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson as a staff member, has always reflected a
favorable image for New Mexico Junior College, and

WHEREAS, Constance M. Robinson has elected to retire the 1st day of May,
2004,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that New Mexico Junior College desires to give special
recognition and appreciation to Constance M. Robinson for her service and dedication to New Mexico

Junior College.

ADOPTED THIS 20th day of May, 2004,

ATTEST:

New Mexico Junior College Board Chairman New Mexico Junior College Board Secretary




WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLUTION

Steven J. Barslou

Steven J. Barslou being one of the Staff Members of New Mexico
Junior College, has faithfully served the College for 20 years, and

Steven J. Barslou has served as Professor of Computer Science from
1984-2004, and

Steven J. Barslou has served as Department Chairperson from 2000-
2004; and

Steven J. Barslou has served as Advisor for the Alliance for Minority
Participation Mentorship 2001-2003, and

Steven J. Barslou has served as Student Success Facilitator 1995,
and

Steven J. Barslou has served as Instructor for Continuing Education/
Community Service 1995, and

Steven J. Barslou has served on various committees at New Mexico
Junior College and in the community; and

Steven J. Barslou has been a devoted, enthusiastic and loyal staff
member at New Mexico Junior College, and

Steven J. Barslou as a staff member, has always reflected a favorable
image for New Mexico Junior College, and

Steven J. Barslou has elected to retire the 1st day of July, 2004.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Steven J. Barslou be declared Professor
Emeritus of New Mexico Junior College with all the rights and privileges pertaining thereto;

ADOPTED THIS 20th day of May, 2004.

ATTEST:

New Mexico Junior College Board Chairman

New Mexico Junior College Board Secretary




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Personnel Recommendation for Board Consideration

The following candidate is being recommended for employment as follows: Date_ April 29. 2004

Candidate’s name_Terry Holloman

Position title_ Professor of Reading and Writing in Transitional Studies

Q New position Q Existing position Classification § Faculty 0 Professional O Other,

Is candidate related to another NMJC employee? O yes &no If so, to whom

Effective date of employmeat__August 16, 2004 Standard contract length Q 12 mos. & 9 mos. U other,

Funding source____institutional funds

Paid advertising beyond *standard Chronicle of Higher Education website
(’Swmm&MmMMbmhﬂyﬂmﬂhlmmqulmmw.mm&hwmmD:vl:lq:mlm)

31,461 to $39,326 N 0
Posted salary range _$ $39, Recommended annual salary _ $31,500 P(arglgd;“ m = a?’gh]ﬂso)

Account number(s) with respective % allocation(s) 1-2011-13370

Recommended and app{oved by

o W @) e A ey

Vice President President Vv

Selection Committee Members:

TE L ™~ - CE RS F EASLIS Y

Comments: Ms. Holloman meets and/or exceeds the minimum qualifications for this position.

rev. 6-28.01



ABBREVIATED RESUME

Position

Professor of Reading/Writing in Transitional Studies (Developmental)

Personal Data

Name: Terry A. Holloman

Education

B.A., Lubbock Christian University, Lubbock, TX, 1982

Professional Experience

College of the Southwest, Hobbs, NM
P-T Adjunct Professor

Taylor Street Church of Christ, Hobbs, NM
P-T Volunteer Director of Children’s Education, Preschool

New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, NM
P-T Transitional Studies English Instructor
Temp. P-T Upward Bound English Literature Teacher

Organizations/Awards

Graduated, Summa Cum Laude, from Lubbock Christian University, 1982
Meals on Wheels
PTA, Vice President, Mills Elementary

1998 to Present

1992 to Present

8/03 to 12/03
6/03 to 7/03



Hew ilexico Junior Eolleye

bareer Opportunities

Position Announcement -February 2004
Position Tile: Professor of Reading/Writing in Transitional Studies (Developmental)

Position Description: This position reports to the Dean of Transitional Studies. Duties and responsibilities
include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) teach classes (day and/or evening) in Reading and/or Writing
(Review of English); (2) serve on college committees as assigned; (3) work with learning communities; (4) post
and maintain approved office hours per week; (5) assume other professional responsibilities associated with the
position of professor; and (6) nothing contained herein shall limit the president in assigning the employee to any
of the various college activities for which he/she would be qualified in order to meet the needs of New Mexico
Junior College.

Qualifications: Bachelor’s Degree in arelated field from a regionally accredited institution is required. Master’s
degree preferred. Teaching experience in reading, writing, and/or language arts required. Community college
teaching experience in developmental education preferred. Must be committed to excellence in instruction and
willing to work with other instructors in coordinating the offerings and providing substitute instruction when
needed. Computer proficiency required.

Salary/Benefits: Salary is based on the NMJC faculty salary schedule and is commensurate with education
and experience for a nine month position. The successful applicant may have the option of teaching
during the summer terms for income above his/her salary. Standard NMJC benefits apply. NOTE: NMJC
does not participate in social security deductions.

Application Beadline: Open until filled. Interviews will be conducted by a selection committee and will
commence upon receipt of completed applications by qualified candidates. Position starts 2004 Fall semester.
To ensure consideration, all application materials must be received by the deadline. Please do not send any
application materials via e-mail.

ToApDIY: Submit NMJC application form, letter of application, resume, unofficial transcripts (official
transcripts required prior to employment), and three or more letters of reference to:

Lisa Brewn
Directer of Human Reseurces
Now Mexico Junior Geliepe
9317 Levington Righway
Hehhs, NM 88240

New Mexico Junior College is an Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Action Employer and does not discriminate against any applicant for
employment because of race, coler, national origin, sex, age, disability, or veteran status. Qualified applicants are encouraged to apply.

"Equal Opportenity Education and Employment”
5317 Lovington Highway, Hobbs, NM, 88240 » Phone: (505) 392-5229 « Fax: (505) 392-3589 « Toll Free: 1-800-657-6260 « E-mail: lbrowni@mmic.edu



APPLICANT LIST

Position: Professor of Reading/Writing in Transitional Studies (Developmental)

Applicant Interview Offer Remarks

Zhang, Yuanzhong No No

Elliott, Susan Yes No

Mills, Jeffrey No No

Drennan, Alan No No

Garcia, John No No

Eggleton, Travis No No

Davis, Nancy No No

Spell, Bomani No No Incomplete application materials,
Ball, Elizabeth No No Incomplete application materials.
Holloman, Terry Yes Yes Start date: pending Board approval.
Collins, D. Anthony No No

Evans, Derelle No No

Reiff, Francis Yes No Cancelled interview,

Garza, Sandra No No

Boroianu, Simona No No

Day, Joanna No No

Rainwater-Kinabrew, Teena No No

DuPre, Michael No No Incomplete application materials.

Page 1



Position: Professor of Reading/Writing in Transitional Studies (Developmental) (continued from page 1)

Applicant Interview Offer Remarks

Edwards, April No No

Cherryhomes, Gilbert No No

Latham, Lisa No No

Dill-Lanham, Diane No No Incomplete application materials.
Mason, Robert No No

Napp, Anna No No

Aleman, Sandra No No

Watts, Robert No No Incomplete application materials.
McNaney, Joanna No No Incomplete application materials.
Peterson, Denise No No Incomplete application materials.
Espino, Antonia No No Incomplete application materials.

Page 2



